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Introduction

AD Ports Group Our values

IS one of the region’s
leading enablers of trade, %
industry and logistics

Eager to
collaborate
As a strategic gateway to Abu Dhabi, the @:
economic engine of the UAE, the Group
operates an integrated ecosystem of
Economic Cities & Free Zones, Ports, Safe, seckre &
Logistics, Maritime and Digital services. @
=7

Innovative for
excellence

Fair & committed
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At a Glance

AD Ports Group is a vertically
integrated trade enabler, providing
strategic access to the UAE, one of
the Middle East’s fastest-growing
economies, and turning Abu Dhabi
into a trade hub to serve the world.

The company’s five business Clusters — Economic Cities
& Free Zones, Ports, Maritime, Logistics and Digital —
make up a resilient trade cormmunity bonded by strong
partnerships which generate stable performance and
consistent growth.

Key facts

aq AD Ports Group
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Key financial highlights
Revenue (AED)

5,498 Mn

+41%

Revenue composition by Cluster (%)

EC&FZ
® Ports
® Maritime
® Logistics
® Digital

EBITDA (AED)

2,175 Mn

+36%

EBITDA composition by Cluster (%)

EC&FZ
® Ports
® Maritime
® Logistics
® Digital

Net Profit (AED)

1,284 Mn

+51%

Total Assets (AED)

38,512 Mn

+37%

Net Debt / EBITDA (x)

2.0x
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We provide

a competitive
trading
environment

Our ecosystem

AD Ports Group is an integrated portfolio of world-class Economic Cities & Free
Zones, Ports, Maritime, Logistics and Digital businesses driving the growth of
international trade.

Streamlined processes enabling customer satisfaction
and cost benefits through our five Clusters

Digital

Our Maritime Cluster provides shipping
and marine services, delivers world- Our Logistics Cluster
class maritime education and training r provides end-to-end
courses and governs and regulates supply chain and freight
Abu Dhabi’s maritime sector. solutions to local and
international clientele.

Maritime

Our Digital Cluster provides
advanced, smartand
innovative digital solutions
to stakeholders within trade
and logistics communities.

Logistics

Our Economic Cities &
Free Zones Cluster
servesover1,850 [N :
ﬁz customers, providing a
hub for manufacturing,
logistics and trade.

Economic Cities &
Free Zones

AD Ports Group
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Year in Review 2022

In 2022, AD Ports Group delivered a remarkable growth story in a transformational
year that saw it achieve global expansion and record results duringits first year as a
publicly listed entity. In what will be remembered as one of the most important years
in the company’s history so far, the Group welcomed His Highness Sheikh Mohamed
bin Zayed Al Nahyan, President of the UAE, to inaugurate the expansion of Khalifa Port.

2022

On 8 February 2022, the Group celebrated the successful
listing of its shares on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
(ADX) under the ticker symbol ADPORTS.

The Group acquired Divetech Marine Engineering Services, a
UAE-based topside-subsea solutions provider that offers a
range of services, including installation, inspection, repair, and
maintenance, and Alligator Shipping (ASCL), a UAE-based
Non-Vessel Operating Common Carrier (NVOCC) shipping
and logistics service provider primarily covering customersin
the UAE and India.

Inanimportant strategic milestone, the ‘Abu Dhabi Food Hub
- KEZAD’ - was launched in partnership with Ghassan Aboud
Group and in collaboration with Rungis.

The Group also launched ‘Global Auto Hub Abu Dhabi,” one of
theregion’s largest export and distribution hubs for the
automotive industry, covering 3.3 km?.

6 AD Ports Group
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2022

In Q2, the Group signed Heads of Terms agreements with the
Red Sea Ports Authority to develop major port projects along
Egypt’s coastline, including a multi-purpose terminalin
Safaga Port, as well as cruise ship berths and terminals at
Sharm El Sheikh, Hurghada, and Safaga ports.

The Group also partnered with the National Marine Dredging
Company Group (NMDC) to set up a new offshore survey and
subsea services company called SAFEEN Surveys and Subsea
Services.




Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Financial
Statements

The year was also marked by a series of transformational investments, acquisitions,
and the opening of new trade corridors. Furthermore, through a successful
restructuring and the realisation of a vertically integrated Cluster model, the Group
completed 2022 as a transformed business that has delivered exceptional

shareholder value.

In Q3, the Group hosted the Abu Dhabi Industrial Strategy
launch at KEZAD, which will see the Abu Dhabi Government
invest AED 10 billion across six transformational programmes.
The Group also signed a series of agreements with SEG, one
of Uzbekistan’s largest oil and gas companies, to open new
logistics and freight businesses and develop a food trading
hub in the Central Asian nation.

In September, the Group launched KLPZ21, a new advanced
warehousing and logistics hub located in KEZAD, to serve
food and healthcare sectors requiring significant cold and
ambient storage capacity capable of servinga combined
market of 4.5 billion consumers.

The Group also completed its first international acquisition in
Q3, acquiringa 70% equity stake in Egypt-based Transmar
International Shipping Company (Transmar) and Transcargo
International SAE (TCl). Furthermore, the Group launched the
‘KEZAD Group’ by combining allits economic zones under
one umbrella. SAFEEN Feeders launched a new container
shipping service linking the UAE with the Red Sea and one
that will link Karachiin Pakistan with the Middle East and East
Africa. The Group also launched a new UAE-China service
that connects the Chinese ports of Shanghai, Qingdao and
Ningbo directly with Khalifa Port in Abu Dhabi.

In addition, the Group collaborated with shipping and logistics
leader CMA CGM Group in launching a new Southeast Asia
service linking Singapore, Colombo and Chennai, and SAFEEN
Feeders signed a major long-term agreement with Invictus
Investment to launch a new international dry bulk shipping
service — SAFEEN Invictus.

2022

The Group’s digital arm, Magta Gateway, teamed up with
Emirates Post Group and SkyGo to launch trials for the
emirates’ first-ever postal delivery service conducted via
aerial drones.

The Group also announced the acquisitions of an 80% stake in
Global Feeder Shipping (GFS), a global emerging markets
container shipping company operating 20 services in the GCC,
Red Sea, Indian Subcontinent, and Southeast Asia regions, and
100% ownership of Noatum, a leading global logistics
platform with a presence in 26 countries.

The Group also broke ground on constructing the UAE’s
largest fulfilment centre in Abu Dhabifor Noon, the Middle
East’s leading online shopping destination. The centre forms
part of an anchor investment by Noon into the emirate’s
fast-growing e-commerce space.

In December, KEZAD Communities merged with Al Eskan Al
Jamae LLC to create Abu Dhabi’s largest integrated staff
accommodation company.

December also saw the Group sign a shareholder agreement
with KMTF (Kazmortransflot) to launch ajoint venture that
provides offshore and shipping services for energy companies
inthe Caspian Sea.

AD Ports Group 7
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Investment Case

The

to invest
iINn Abu Dhabi

Our ecosystem of five Clusters:
Economic Cities & Free Zones; Ports;
Maritime; Logistics and Digital provide
stability and a platform for stable and
predictable long-term growth.

1Al
2

The Group’s growth strategy is driven
by a de-risked approach, givenits stable
and highly predictable revenues and its
supportive macro and top-down story.
Ouir triple-play growth strategy with
complementary drivers — operational
ramp-up of existing assets, ongoing

8 AD Ports Group
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AED 15 billion capex programme
planned for the next five years, and
M&A activity domestically and
internationally — is well supported by
our strong balance sheet and quality
asset base and will ensure resilient
expansion through economic and
industry cycles.

With clear outcomes and objectives, the
Group’s three-stage growth strategy
sets out to consolidate its position in
Abu Dhabiand the UAE, deliver focused
regional expansion, and expand globally
to become aleading logistics and trade
services player. The Group has already
established itself as a regional
champion out of Abu Dhabiand has
now been working on scaling up its
world-class capabilities to become the
regional go-to logistics and trade
services provider.

Furthermore, the Group has developed
a focused inorganic expansion strategy
that is built around well-defined criteria.
It will proactively explore and pursue
opportunistic complementary,
synergetic and value-added
investments. Inorganic investments will
primarily concern logistics, maritime,
and port assets to enhance customer
relationships, influence trade routes,
improve connectivity, expand logistics
footprint, and build our larger Abu
Dhabi-based assets. Inorganic
opportunities will also have to offer
appropriate scale and strong and stable
management while being financially
attractive.

Investors are attracted to our world-
class assets, infrastructure, and
investments, such as our state-of-the-
art Container, Ro-Ro (roll-on, roll-off
vehicle), General Cargo and Cruise
facilities. Our land bank of more than
550 km? for industrial development

— two-thirds the size of Singapore - is a
significant strength. We plan to turn
KEZAD into one of the world’s largest
economic and industrial free trade
zones. Furthermore, our mix of landlord
and operating business models and our
diversified revenue streams are key
value propositions for investors.
Although we are a global trade
company, we are exposed to different
market cycles and dynamics and
conduct a significant portion of our
business with a de-risked approach.




Smart thinking

We continue to leverage technology to
make our operations more efficient.
Digitalinnovations are a cornerstone of
our operations and enhance value
across our Group every year. Through
Maqta Gateway — a wholly owned
subsidiary of AD Ports Group - the
Digital Cluster has developed a series of
digital platforms since its inceptionin
2016. Designed to catalyse and
streamline global trade through
integrated digital solutions, the Cluster’s
work has cemented the Group’s
fast-growing globalreputation as an
international end-to-end trade and
logistics enabler.

Solid financial base

The long-term nature of our contract
business, whichis typically longer than
15 years, underpins around 75% of our
revenue. Our well-balanced capital
structure and solid financial position are
reflectedin our A+ investment grade
credit ratings from Fitch and S&P Global
and are further aided by our diversified
portfolio and partnership model.

Strategic
Report

Our organic capital expenditure
expectations — AED 15 billion from 2023
to 2027 to expand Khalifa Port and its
connectivity, continue to diversify and
increase the capacity of our Maritime
Cluster as well as further develop our
Economic Cities & Free Zones - will set
the stage for further growth.

InFebruary 2022, we raised AED 4 billion
through our direct listing, with the
equity proceeds having been deployed
to generate organic growthin the
medium and long term. Looking ahead,
we will aim to fund development
through bondissuances as the
predominant long-term funding vehicle,
with revolving credit facilities
constituting a liquidity backstop.

Shareholder support

Our anchor shareholder, Abu Dhabi
Developmental Holding Company
(ADQ), with a75.44% stake, is aligned
with our growth plans, including
international expansion. In early 2022,
ADQ transferredits 22.32% equity stake
in the integrated transport and logistics
player Aramex PJSC and its 10% stake in
National Marine Dredging Company
PISC (NMDC) to AD Ports Group. This
added approximately AED 2.5 billionin
assets to our balance sheet. AD Ports
Group is committed to maximising
shareholder value as it leverages its
unigue business ecosystem to bring
about one of the world’s leading
integrated ports and logistics trade
hubs, driven to set the standard for
excellence at the forefront of a
changingindustry.

Experienced management

Our investors can rely on our highly
experienced management team, who
consistently identifies and capitalises on
opportunities to drive our ambitious
growth strategy forward. This decisive
approach has enabled the Group to
execute value-accretive, transformative
acquisitions, notably GFS and Noatum.
Akey aspect of our inorganic growth
strategy is to ensure the acquired
companies possess exceptional
managerial expertise, which contributes
to the overall quality and success of our
expanding operations.

AD Ports Group =)
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Chairman’s Statement

Exceptional
outcomes in
extraordinary
times

“Following a standout
year of strategic,
geographic, and financial
growth, AD Ports Group
has cemented its position
as a leading international
trade facilitator and fully
integrated provider of
global trade logistics and
transport solutions.
Through tenacity, vision,
and dedication, the Group
has delivered exceptional
operational outcomes
and rewarded the trust
of its new shareholders HisExcellency Falah
with record-breaking Moh3mmed Al Ahbabi
financial results.”

10 AD Ports Group
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Itis telling that the UAE economy
continued to grow throughout a period
of sustained global uncertainty in 2022.
Through global supply chain disruptions
and soaringinflation, the UAE’s stable
governance and robust economic
performance are a testament to a
national character fortified with
resilience and a determination to
overcome obstacles. That is why the
Group completed 2022 with such
extraordinary outcomes.

Maximising synergies

Across the Group’s Clusters, we have
seen geographic expansion, multi-
market acquisitions, new trade routes,
new assets, and soaring operational
throughput. Our acquisition of Noatum
- alogistics provider in 26 countries -
significantly broadens the Group’s
global footprint. This reach will be
leveraged to capture a higher share of
business in key trading partner
geographies.

Similarly, the purchase of an 80% stake
in Dubai-based Global Feeder Shipping
(GFS) - the third largest feeder shipping
business globally — places AD Ports
Group as the biggest pure feeder
operator in the region and the third
largest globally by container capacity.
The Group also completed the
acquisition of a 70% stake in
International Associated Cargo Carrier
(IACC) in Egypt, which brought the total
signed mergers and acquisitions (M&A)
to a total of seven transactions with a
value of AED 5.9 billion. The financial
impact of these deals can be seen
across the business, particularly in the
contribution of the Maritime Cluster,
which delivered revenue growth of
253% year-on-year. This outstanding
performance has been drivenby a
broader service offering andincreased
activity in new business segments,
including feedering, chartering,
transshipment, and offshore services.

Strategic synergies between and within
Clusters have also driven growth. The
Economic Cities & Free Zones Cluster’s
integration of KIZAD and ZonesCorp
created the region’s most extensive
integrated trade, logistics, and industrial

Strategic
Report

hub. Named KEZAD Group, the newly
combinedbody is poised to unlock
widespread opportunities for investors
and accelerateitsland and
infrastructure model. Economic Cities &
Free Zones Cluster’s revenue increased
by 6% toreach AED 1,658 million.

Synergies between KEZAD Group and
the Ports Cluster also bore fruit, with
the latter delivering like-for-like revenue
growth of 21% year-on-year and a 28%
surge in container throughput. The
Ports Cluster also saw the inauguration
of the South Quay and KPL expansion
project at Khalifa Port as well as the
construction commencement of the
new CMA CGM container terminal.

Meanwhile, the Logistics Cluster paved
the way for new advanced warehouse
and cold storage facilities at the KEZAD
Logistics Park, completing the year
with year-on-year revenue down by
12% due to lower demand for vaccines
post globalimprovement in COVID-19
situation. We also saw the Digital
Cluster, which works in synergy

across the entire Group, deliver
revenue growth of 11%, driven by

the development of a series of
technology-led solutions.

Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
Itis atestament toits extraordinary
talents, services, infrastructure and
solutions that the Group has delivered
these historic outcomes during a year of
significant global uncertainty while also
listing on the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange. The listing, which was heavily
oversubscribed, saw a total of around
1.25 million shares sold, representing
24.58% of the overall ownership.

Since the listing, the Group’s credit
rating of A+ was reaffirmed by both
S&P Globaland Fitch multiple times,
highlighting the Group’s strengths as
one of the key companies fostering Abu
Dhabi’s non-hydrocarbon economy and
diversification. Since listing, the stock’s
opening price of AED 3.2 increased by
almost 80% toreach AED 5.74 on
31December 2022. By year-end, the
Group had a market capitalisation of
AED 29.2 billion. This performance
reflects the strength of the Group’s
strategy for growth, geographic
expansion, and targeted investments.

Unleashing economic
opportunity

Our investments, designed to
accelerate and solidify the Group’s role
as aworld-class international logistics
hub, will bring our infrastructure closer
than ever to where the economic
activity is taking place. The
development of a new six-kilometre
South Quay expansion project at Khalifa
Port will help the largest vesselsin the
world connect through Abu Dhabi to
every global market.

As we look ahead, the Group now sitsin
an exceptionally strong position, well
placed for global expansion and poised
to deliver remarkable growth across the
business. Aligned with the
socioeconomic goals laid down by the
UAE’s visionary leaders, the Group looks
forward to maximising its contribution
to national economic development, job
creation, andits place on the
international stage.

Facilitating global trade
Through new agreements in frontier
and emerging economies, we look
forward to working with multilateral
trade bodies to support and enhance
intra-regional trade worldwide. We also
look forward to facilitating trade and
supporting the flow of goods around
the world - and across our region -
during a period of continued global
economic and geopolitical uncertainty.

' want to take this opportunity to thank
the Board of Directors for their strategic
focus during a year of such profound
change and all of the Group’s employees
for their hard work in delivering such
exceptional operational and financial
outcomes. | would also like to express
my gratitude to our national leaders for
their guidance over recent years and to
the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
regulators for their help in making the
Group’s listing such a success.

His Excellency Falah
Mohammad Al Ahbabi
Chairman of AD Ports Group

AD Ports Group n
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Group CEO’s Statement

Resilient
growth

iIN turbulent
times

“Ourrolein
facilitating national,
regional and global
trade accelerated at
breakneck speed
during a remarkable
and transformative
year for AD Ports
Group.”

Captain Mohamed
Juma Al Shamisi

12 AD Ports Group
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2022 was a breakthrough year for AD
Ports Group as we delivered record
financial results and reinforced our
rapidly growing position as the region’s
leading provider of integrated supply
chain solutions and a gateway to Abu
Dhabiand the region’s most diverse and
fastest-growing economies. It is thanks
to the wise and visionary leadership of
the UAE that we are able toreport
outstanding performancein ayear of
such profound global uncertainty.

Despite the international context and
continued supply chain disruptions, the
Group’s five Clusters delivered
exceptional operational and financial
results, leading to an overallincrease in
Group revenues of 41% and a 51%
increase in Net Profit. These
outstandingresults were driven by the
continued ramp-up of existing
operations, higher utilisation of
increased capacity, new business
segments and service offerings as well
as the acquisition of Divetech, Alligator
Shipping Company, SAFEEN Surveys

41% increase
N revenues

and Subsea Services and IACC
(Transmar and TClI).

Additionally, and in alignment with Abu
Dhabi’s long-termindustrial and
economic diversification strategies, the
Group leveraged synergies across allits
five Clusters to expand services, invest
in new logistics infrastructure, and
complete a series of significant
acquisitions. The latter has served to
significantly widen the Group’s presence
ininternational markets and diversify its
capabilities across global trade routes.

Ayear of acquisitions

In total, the Group announced seven
M&A transactions worth AED 5.9 billion
in 2022, with four of them completed
last year and the remainder to be
completedin the first half of 2023. In

what is one of the Group’s most
significant strategic moves, it acquired
an 80% share of Dubai-based Global
Feeder Shipping (GFS). The move offers
vast opportunities for expansion across
multiple markets and regions and
further solidifies the Group’s hub and
spoke model by linking core markets in
South East Asia, Indian subcontinent,
the Red Sea and East Africa toits key
port and economic zone assets, notably
Khalifa Port and KEZAD.

51% increase
iN Net Profit

AD Ports Group
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Group CEO’s Statement continued

The Group also acquired Noatum, a
logistics company which operatesin 26
countries with a workforce of close to
2,700 people. The AED 2.2 billion
acquisition significantly broadens AD
Ports Group’s global footprint and
provides a platform to develop a leading
international logistics and freight
forwarding company.

A series of other acquisitions and JVs
also took place, expanding our service
offering to include offshore logistics,
surveys, and subsea services to better
serve the growingregional oiland gas
industry. The Group also saw the Digital
Cluster deliver double-digit growth,
with the Advanced Trade and Logistics
Platform (ATLP), the single trade
window of Abu Dhabi, passingits 100
millionth digital transaction.

Infrastructure development
In a significant strategic development,
the Economic Cities & Free Zones
Cluster merged KIZAD and ZonesCorp
under KEZAD Group, which now forms
theregion’s largest integrated trade,
logistics and industrial hub. The new
body brings a unified, end-to-end
logistics approach much closer to
businesses in key industries, including
logistics, food and AgriTech, metals,
automotive, plastic, polymers and
speciality chemicals.

2022 also saw the accelerated
development of new logistics, digital
and portsinfrastructure. The Group’s
Logistics Cluster set in motion plans to
create a new distribution business line
for the healthcare sector and paved the
way for the launch of new advanced
warehouse and cold storage facilities at
KEZAD. Furthermore, the AED 4 billion
South Quay expansion project at Khalifa
Port significantly upgraded the Group’s
global connectivity and container
capacity, future-proofingits position as
atruly integrated enabler of
international trade.

14 AD Ports Group

Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022

At Khalifa Port, development of the new
CMA CGM Terminal continued and a new
strategic partnership with Alexander
Global Logistics BmbH was signed,
which advances Abu Dhabi’s
transformation into a regional leader for
pulp and paper products. An agreement
was also signed with the Dubai-based
subsidiary of the Italian multinational oil
and gas giant, Eni Abu Dhabi, to
establish a marine logistics base at
Mugharraq Port that supports offshore
drilling operations in the Al Dhafra
region. Significant progress was also
made in the development of Abu
Dhabi’s first greenfield commercial bulk
liguid storage terminal, whichis being
built as part of a strategic agreement
signed with Saudi Arabia-based Arabian
Chemical Terminals (ACT).

Seven M&A
transactions
worth AED
5.9 billion

Sustainability

In addition to these extensive
operational advancements, much
progress was made in the Group’s
sustainability journey in 2022, including
solar power systems, advanced
insulation materials, centralised
refrigeration, fleet telematics,
electrically powered vessels and
dual-fuel technologies that leverage
hydrogen and biofuels for hybrid
vessels.

The Group’s focus on sustainability also
saw it enrichits existing environmental,
socialand governance (ESG) principles
with anupdated ESG strategy thatis

Il
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fully aligned with the 2023 Year of
Sustainability, launched by the President
of the UAEIn 2022. The ESG strategy
provides aroadmap for environmental
stewardship, corporate capabilities,
responsible business practices and
enrichinglives. Collectively, these form
aframework for the Group’s ESG
approach and methodologies.

Initial Public Offering

The ESG framework also incorporates
fundamentally important governance
protocolsintegral to the Group’s ability
to sustain growth and add value to its
shareholders. The decision to list on the
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX)
forms part of the Group’s long-term
value creation and sustainability
roadmap, placingit front and centre in
the development of Abu Dhabi’s capital
markets and the emirate’s industrial
diversification.

As we look to deliver sustained
shareholder value in 2023, we will build
upon the many significant
advancements made in 2022. In
particular, the Group’s global reach will
continue to expand, as will its activities
in strategically important shipping,
logistics and ports segments.
Supported by the most advanced
infrastructure and fleets, the Group
faces the significant potential for
regionalandinternational growth as it
continues to enhance the portfolio of
services it offers to customers around
the world.

Captain Mohamed
Juma Al Shamisi

Managing Director and Group CEO of
AD Ports Group

AD Ports Group 15
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Business Model

Our vertically integrated
operations allow us to generate
synergies across our five core
business Clusters.

Well-invested assets and unrivalled
capacity including state-of-the art
Container, Ro-Ro (roll-on, roll-off
vehicle), General Cargo and Cruise
facilities, and a land bank of more than
550 km? for industrial development.

Digital solutions that increase the
efficiency and productivity of maritime
business interactions, fostering
transparency and access to real-time
information, including the Advanced
Trade and Logistics Platform (ATLP),

the official single window for trade in
Abu Dhabi.

Joint ventures and partnerships within
the UAE and internationally, with
industrial leaders and strong
institutional support from the emirate
of Abu Dhabi.

Recognition by numerous prestigious
industry bodies and global leaders in
maritime trade and logistics.

Underpinned by:

Economic Cities
& Free Zones

Our Economic Cities & Free Zones
Cluster serves over 1,850 customers,
providing a hub for manufacturing,
logistics and trade.

Our Ports Cluster owns and
operates Khalifa Port and other
community portsin the region.

Maritime

Our Maritime Cluster provides shipping
and marine services, delivers world-
class maritime education and training
courses and governs and regulates
Abu Dhabi’s maritime sector.

Our Logistics Cluster provides end-to-
end supply chain and freight solutions
to localandinternational clientele.

Robust risk
management

Strong culture
and values

AD Ports Group
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Our broad portfolio of infrastructure and
services allows us to support a flourishing
economy and to address the complexities of
global trade and logistics from every angle.

Our unified team works across our integrated
business Clusters, Economic Cities & Free
Zones, Ports, Maritime, Logistics and Digital,
connecting global maritime routes and
international trading partners.

Our Digital Cluster provides advanced,
smart and innovative digital solutions
to stakeholders within trade and
logistics communities.

Strategic
Report

Customers

We build long-lasting
partnerships with our
customers, collaborating with
them to meet their goals,
providing high quality, efficient
and value-added services.

Employees

We provide a safe, rewarding
andinspiring place for
employees to work and develop
their careers.

Investors

We manage risk prudently and
provide attractive returns to our
shareholders, investing in our
assets for long-term growth.

Communities
and society

We are an enabler of trade,
industrialisation and economic
diversification, supporting Abu
Dhabi’s aims to be a leading
global hub for trade and
logistics. We provide jobs, skills
and training in the communities
in which we operate, and are
committed to social and
environmental sustainability.

Sustainability
focus

Responsible
governance

AD Ports Group 17
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Strategy

A
with clear
Objectives and outcomes

to scale up
to world-class capabilities
and become the regional
go-to logistics and

trade services provider.
VIS POV Expand globally to become

a leading logistics and trade
services player

Consolidate position Focus regional
in Abu Dhabi and expansion
the UAE

to drive
network effects.

18 AD Ports Group
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Customer-led regional expansion:

Accompanying our customers by
focusing on specific trade routes,
specific supply chains, and specific
products and services.

Critical trade maritime routes
for the UAE are MENA, India and
Southeast Asia.

Priority industrial supply
chains include:

+ Machinery and equipment

+ Processed food and beverage
* Metals

+ Chemicals and plastics

- Raw construction materials

- Commodity food

- Automotive and spares

+ Healthcare and pharma

Strategic
Report

Key outcomes

®

Maximum returns and
portfolio synergies

{

Maximum customer
‘stickiness’

5
Superior supply
chain outcomes

AD Ports Group
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Strategy continued

This pivot will enable AD Ports Group %k
to unlock the full potential of critical iy

Scale and geographicreach

Focused portfolio diversification

industry value creation levers.

Vertical integration

Value creation levers {#;  Innovationandtechnology

Lever Discussion Lever Discussion

K

- Substantial market presence pan-
regionally or globally

- Ability to participate in trade flows
meaningfully from origin and destination

+ End-to-end presence and capabilities across
the entire supply chain (from origin to
destination)

+ Ability to own end-customers and optimise
supply chain performance

+ Multi-service offering with a clear . - Digital solutions are intrinsic to the corporate
jI[’ underpinning strategic logic on portfolio _@_ identity (strategy, operations, support) and
Q choices NZA underpinned by a discernible culture of innovation

- Ability to reduce risk and hedge for growth - Ability to differentiate from and outperform

competitors

Channelsof Description 2022 Activity Future Plans
Growth
Investing Aregional + We continued to invest billions of dirhamsin - We will continue to invest
and building champion for infrastructure in our Ports and Economic ininorganic growth
Abu Dhabi Abu Dhabi Cites and Industrial Zones (EC&IZ) Clusters. through M&A to
andtheUAE .~ - We progressed the new Etihad Rail terminal strengthen our scale and
as the prime world—clags at Khalifa Port. geographic reach.
logistics hub capabilities - We inaugurated South Quay, an expansion ~ * We will continue to invest
N of Khalifa Port berths and terminal inour ports with AED 15
the regional infrastructure. billion capital expenditure
go-to - We signed 4.2 km? of new foreign direct allocated over the next
logistics and investment into our industrial zones. five years, mainly across
trade service - We brought out innovative products within U7 MIETIEIS, BOrts e
provider. the industrial zones: Automotive City, Food EC&IZ Clusters.
Hub, and Metal Parks.
- We provided greater connectivity and
added several routes and services from
Khalifa Port to Egypt, the upper Gulf, the
Red Sea, and North Africa.
Focused Customer-led - We acquired the globallogistics company, + We will continue to look for
regional regional Noatum, which operates in 26 countries new opportunities
expansion expansion with over 2,700 people. The AED 2.2 billion regionally to grow and
Accompanying acquisition significantly broadens AD Ports expand across our five
OUr cuStomers Group’s global footprint and positions it Clusters.
by focusing among the world’s leading logistics and - We will accelerate the
oBr/w specific freight forwarding companies. Group’s presence across
trade routes ° Wesignedanagreementin Jordanand major maritime and inland
supply chain'S began constructing a cruise terminal at supply chains to drive
products andl Agaba. The development is the first of five network effects.
o — strategic projects planned by the Group,
supporting Jordan’s journey towards
building a modern tourism, logistics and
transport sector.
20 AD Ports Group
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Channelsof Description 2022 Activity Future Plans
Growth
Focused + The strategic projects in Jordan support - We will continue to
regional the Group’s international growth strategy expand logistics
expansion by leveraging Agaba’s pivotal location and capabilities to accelerate
continued vast potential as a regional hub on the and enrich the Group’s
Red Sea. ability to attract global
- We began operations in Egypt by acquiring trade and facilitate
70% of Transmar International Shipping import-export activities
International, Transmar, and Transcargo - inadditiontoits
International, TCl. The acquisition provides prowess inserving leading
the Group with a market-leading platform UAE businesses in large
that ensures further growth in container industrial sectors.
and cargo volumes and port operations in
Egypt, North Africa, and the entire
Red Sea region.
+ InFebruary 2022, the Group acquired
Divetech Marine Engineering Services. This
UAE-based topside-subsea solutions
provider offers arange of services,
including installation, inspection, repair and
maintenance for oiland gas infrastructure
and other related organisations. This
enables the Group to integrate a dynamic
company with a significant pipeline of
potential new business into our operations.
+ Inline with the Group’s diversification
strategy, the Logistics Cluster paved the
way for openingits new advanced
warehouse and cold storage facilities,
KEZAD Logistics Park 21 (KLP21) — offering
best-in-class food storage facilities that
also boost national food security.
Expand Criticaltrade - Organically, the Group acquired assets for - We will continue seeking
globally to maritime deployment across the Gulf and the sub- new growth opportunities
becomea routes continent, gaining the capacity to service and areas of expansion to
leading Development markets from North Africa to the Red Sea become a leading global
logistics and P by the end of 2022. logistics and trade
of crucial L . i
tradg traderoutes ° 1heacquisition of 80% of GFSis services player.
services across MENA fundamental: the second largest dedicated - We are focused on
player India and ' feeder shipping business globally, it integration and
s — operates a comprehensive service network optimisation, and our key
B of 20 services across the GCC, Red Sea, focus is on acquisition

Indian Subcontinent, and Southeast
Asia regions.

+ The Group entered strategically important

central and eastern Europe after signing
two agreements with one of Uzbekistan’s
largest oiland gas companies, SEG. The
MoU sets out plans for developing logistics,
freight, and food trading infrastructure in
the country by creating a new logistics and
freight business.

synergies to gain more
outcomes for our
stakeholders.

+ Key high-growth markets

such as Southeast Asia,

the Indian Subcontinent
and Central Asia regions
are a focus as the Group.

AD Ports Group
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Strategy continued

The core of the AD Ports Group’s
strategy is premised on building
supply chain density and resilience

Where are the opportunities to
add industrial/economic zones
to international ports to enable
logistics activity?

T -
< SHipE

Ports

Where could AD Ports Group
establish port access to secure
entry to origination and/or
destination markets?

Where can AD Ports Group provide
maritime services in internationally
owned ports?

Logistics

What capabilities are needed, and
where, to serve which key customers
and value chains and must they be
built or bought?

Digital

Which digital capabilities are needed
to enable efficiency, optimisation
and customer experience along

the value chain?

22 AD Ports Group
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Strategic rationale: Building strategic
supply chain density and resilience

(PCS, ATLP etc.)

Ports Services -
and Maritime
Academy

Offshoreand ...~
subsea services

Maritime -

h

d

e

A%

International
origination

client

Hinterland
logistics

Port of
origin

Feeder
shipping

Port of
destination

Hinterland
logistics

International
end client

Build a series

of vertically
integrated,

Abu Dhabi-
intermediated
global (3PL)
supply chains
to capture
maximum value
and build supply
chainresilience
for customers
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Human Capital and Emiratisation

During a year of historic change that
saw AD Ports Group complete a series
of significant acquisitions and listing on
the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
(ADX), the Group’s Human Capitaland
Emiratisation (HC&E) department
developedanew and comprehensive
set of people strategies. This process
required a fundamental restructuring of
the Group’s HC&E function to support
the current and forthcoming
transformations with a key focus on
helping individual Clusters to realise
their potential.

At the heart of the new strategy was
the creation of a new centralised hub for
all standard HC&E transactional
activities built around a shared service
model. This approach aims to achieve
optimal HC&E operational effectiveness
and provide high-quality customer
services with best-in-class technologies
andservice level agreements.
Supporting the transformation, the
HC&E department developed an
enhanced business intelligence
dashboard to provide reporting and
real-time access to information on
people-related elements to senior
management and stakeholders.

Well-being

The HC&E strategy also provided scope
for astrong focus on well-being, with
the development of a new strategy
supported by a dedicated well-being
section. The new team was established
to provide leadership on all related
matters by connecting, aligning and
engaging employees with the Group’s
overarching well-being culture.

Talent management

In tandem with the development of this
strategy was the formation of a
comprehensive talent management
approach that links business objectives,
people and results. This outlines a clear
strategic direction and maps out unified
talent management initiatives necessary
for the successful execution of the
Group’s business strategy for the coming
five years. Notably, it provides an
integrated talent management approach
at acorporate leveland across each
business Cluster.

24
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The objectiveis to help each Cluster and
their respective subsidiaries leverage
training and skills development relevant
to their unique needs to innovate and
maintain a leading market position. The
HC&E department also developed a new
ecosystem of infrastructures, policies
and processes with proper delegation to
empower individual Clusters to manage
their strategic workforce planning
processes.

Competency framework

Based on corporate values and business
strategy, a new comprehensive
competency framework was definedin
2022. The framework comprises a
competency library that covers core,
leadership and technical competenciesin
accordance with proficiency levels.
Itincludes:

New core competences - these have
been developed based on the core
business capabilities required for the
successful execution of the business
strategy. They arerelevant for all jobs
regardless of the functional area of
the employee. The new core
competencies are designed to foster
teamwork, build collaborative
relationships, safety, and personal
accountability.

New leadership competencies — new
senior-level leadership competencies
were developedin 2022 based on the
frequency of use and future needs.
Competencies have been prioritised
into four key pillars: Strategic,
Operational, People and Personal.
These cover the knowledge, skills,
experience, and behaviours needed to
performkey elements of a leader’s
role to accomplish organisational
objectives. They are relevant for all
managerialroles - positionsin
Management and Executive Streams
- and have been defined as mental
agility, customer focus, driving
performance, adaptability, inspiring
others, and courage.

New technical competencies - the
new technical competencies created
in 2022 cover all job families and
sub-families. All technical
competencies are job-specific and
considered essential for any role
within a defined functional area.

They refer to the knowledge, skills,
experience, and behaviours needed to
perform effectively in a specific job or
group of positions within the
organisation.

Training and development

In line with the needs of the newly
structured Group, HC&E developed a
comprehensive new training and
development framework in 2022. The
framework creates resources and
pathways for bespoke career
development and skills training plans
for every Group corporate, subsidiary
and Cluster-levelemployee.

Training libraries

All corporate functions and the five
Clusters now have access to a unique
training library that includes all the
industry-specific tools, insights and
training collaterals needed to develop
bespoke career paths for every
employee.

Career pathways

The new training and development
framework determines that every
individual at Group and Cluster level can
work directly with their line managers to
identify a clear, relevant, personalised
career pathway. All development
programmes are designed to meet the
needs of the individual and the long-
term needs of the Group.

Managerial ownership

Continuous learningis integral to the
Group’s ability to evolve andis
considered a decisive competitive
advantage for Group employees. The
new framework provides specific
provisions to ensure that line managers
‘own’ the technical training programme
for their teams. They are given the
freedom and flexibility to work closely
with those they manage to encourage
continuous learning.



Environmental,
Social & Financial
Governance Statements

70-20-10 model

The newly developed 70-20-10 model

for learning and development is

designed to ensure sustainability. It is when employees learn and develop through experience.
holistic, combining multiple active,

passive and cooperative learning

methods. The 70-20-10 approach

enables employees to gain a broad

perspective of their role — and potential

role — within the business; and ensures when employees learn and develop through others - incorporating
that a comprehensively trained feedback, cross-business networking, peer learning, coaching,
workforce serves the Group’s long-term mentoring, and regular contact with positive role models.
sustainability.

E-learning

E-learning serves as aroute towards
building a fast-learning culture and
encourages employees to continuously
learn, seek, share and apply new
knowledge and skills. The Group has
invested in multiple e-learning solutions,
including Harvard Manager Mentor,
LinkedIn Learning, Udemy and Coursera.
The Talent Management team has
mapped and matched e-learning
solutions for each employee across the
Group to meet the specific needs of
each employee. Reporting shows that
each learneris spending, on average,
more than ten hours of e-learning per
month.

when employees learn and develop through structured courses -
such as classroom training (F2F), online training, action learning
workshops, certifications, reading, and external studies.

AD Ports Group
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Human Capital and Emiratisation continued

Knowledge management

The strategy focuses on building an
organisational knowledge base and
developing employees’ capabilities to
build and maintain a competitive edge.
The mission of knowledge management
has started to take shape through the
facilitation of knowledge flow through
several channels and tools, including:

1. The knowledge champions’ channel:
bringing together people from
multidisciplinary functions in one
collaborative space.

2. Thelessons learned platform allows
employees to learn from their
experiences and share them with
their colleagues, eventually
improving the quality of decision
making. This serves to foster a
knowledge-sharing culture across
the Group.

The Group also ensures that all human
capital activities, best practices,
procedures and guidelines are made
available and easily accessible for
employees at different levels to aid them
in performing their duties by creatinga
dedicated HC&E page on the intranet.

hours of training completed

working towards ILM qualifications

have obtained ILM certifications

AD Ports Group
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Project management office

HC&E have established a strategic
function to perform as a Project
Management Office that servesasa
regulating, counselling, and supporting
role for allHC&E initiatives and
programmes that target the Group’s
employeesinalignment with its
strategic objectives.

Training and development
outcomes

In a breakthrough year for skills and
career development, the new HC&E
training and development framework
completed over 38,000 hours of
training and welcomed several
development opportunities for women
and leaders, as indicated below.

\Voyagers of Discovery (formerly called
the ‘Developee Program’) is a rigorous
12-month programme to attract and
develop top Emirati talents in the
maritime industry. 109 UAE nationals
have completed the programme so far,
and 2022 welcomed 20 fresh graduates
who underwent a rigorous assessment
and selection process to enter the
programme. Additionally, the internship
programme (ATLG) — a popular initiative
designed for Emiratiwomenin
technology - attracted more than
4,000 expressions of interest. Around
170 talented females successfully
graduated from the programme in
2022.

graduated from GLOW: Gain Leadership
Opportunities for Women

ATLG internship inquiries

female applicants for ATLG internships

As anintegral part of the Group’s
approach to sustainable growth, training
and development are fundamental
enablers of succession planning. In 2022
the Group ran arigorous succession
planning exercise designed to establish a
shared understanding of the
expectations for critical leadership roles.
The exercise also helped evaluate
candidates against those requirements
to determine if they have the capabilities
needed to fulfil such positions.

Atits core, the succession planning
process focuses on managing,
supporting, and developing the next
generation of managers and leaders
within the Group and its five Clusters.
Part of the approach required
identifying roles critical to the
organisation from a risk and business
continuity perspective. The exercise
concluded that 10% of unique functions
are of a critical nature. The process also
led to categorising roles into Top Talent,
High Potential, and Emerging Talents.
These provide greater visibility on the
Group’s talent pipeline.

senior-level employees completed the
International Terminal Management
programme to pursue global opportunities

A new coaching and mentoring framework

was launched, with 100 hours of training and
development




Diversity and inclusion

With more than 77 nationalities and 15
women in senior leadership positions,
the Group ran the GLOW (Gain
Leadership Opportunities for Women)
in-house leadership accelerator with
Aurora50 for the second year. The
eight-week programme, customised
exclusively for the Group, focuses on the
personal development and technical
capabilities of Emirati female
employees. GLOW prepares competent
Emiratiwomen to feel confidentin
leadership roles, helping their career
development and ensuring their value.

Onboarding

In 2022, an enhanced end-to-end
onboarding experience was developed
andlaunched. The new approach
comprises multiple modules that take
the employee into a comprehensive
Group-wide journey across all aspects of
the business, with access to all the
information new joiners need to navigate
their new careers. The onboarding
process also explains the Group’s
approach to career development and
trainingand how to engage with their
relevant line managers to access lifelong
learning opportunities.

Performance management
Anew performance management
system was developedin 2022 to
facilitate the organisation’s long-term
success, bringing greater focus and
definition to the Group’s performance
measures and strategies. The new
system comprises a consistent
performance criteria framework built
around a core set of business-aligned
competencies, framing employees’
objectives around organisation-wide
priorities and using a standardised rating
scale. Integrating the competency
framework into the performance
process will continue into 2023.

In 2022 training sessions were
conducted to enhance the performance
mManagement process towards an
approach that fosters collaboration,
coachingand development,anda
high-performance culture. This involved
the development of defined governance
and calibration mechanisms to ensure

Strategic
Report

the consistent and fair application of
performance standards across the
organisation and the Clusters. This
resultedin 39% of the Group’s talents
achievingan above-average
performance rating for 2022.

Corporate culture

Following the acquisitions completedin
2022, there has been an essential cultural
alignment andintegration process. To
assist in this crucial cultural integration,
HC&E has defined arobust corporate
culture through shared values and the
clear identification of thriving
employees. With more than 77 different
nationalities, the Group ensures that
every employee is entrusted with
developing a suitable workplace culture
that clearly indicates who belongs.
Theresults from the Group’s 2022
employee satisfaction survey showed
the following:

Overall employee satisfaction
happiness levelin 2022 - 84%.
Proud - 92% of the Group’s
employees agreed that they are
proud to work for the Group — 92%.
The Group’s commitment to
strategic goals - 87%.

The Group supports innovation and
creative thinking - 88%.

The Group provides and maintains a
safe work environment - 87%.

Remuneration

Integral to the retention of its workforce is
a Group remuneration strategy thatis
competitive, performance related and
meritocratic. In 2022, HC&E developed a
long-termincentive plan to retain
high-performing executives in addition to
the existing short-termincentive plan
that applies to allemployees. Anewly
defined and enhanced compensation and
benefits schemeis now in place. This has
happenedin tandem with the revaluation
and realignment of jobs, so every position
isindustry-benchmarked to maintain the
Group’s competitive advantage.

Accreditations

In 2022 the Group secured a series of
new accreditations, including:

‘We invest in People’ — Platinum level
(highest accolade)

‘ISO Knowledge Management’ —
30401:2018

Future outlook

As the Group looks to build uponiits
successes from 2022, HC&E faces a
series of opportunities and challenges.
Theyinclude animperative to create
continuous alignment and synergies
across all five Clusters using common
platforms, processes and programmes.
Moreover, this alignment must apply to
all different people’s priorities locally,
regionally, and internationally. Other
priorities for 2023 include the need to:

Embrace analytics capabilities to
align for future capabilities.

Ensure a strong talent pipeline to
respond to planned and opportunistic
project demand.

Strengthen leadership behaviours
through building differentiated
leadership profiles.

Develop talent depth and breadth of
experience that caters to future
growth.

Assess workforce quality, structure,
and talent assets from the various
acquisitions to absorb and unleash
talent from acquired companies.
Build and develop an international
talent pool of both UAE and non-UAE
nationals.

Foster a flexible and agile workforce
capable of delivering through periods
of rapid business expansion by
creating anintegrated talent value
chain and internal talent marketplace.
Strengthen the business
performance culture.

Enhance the employer brand and
social media engagement to attract
international talent.

Enhance the Group acquisition
strategy, onboarding, and engagement
programmes to attract andretain the
best talent locally and globally.

AD Ports Group
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Clusters
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The purpose of Economic
Cities & Free Zones has
evolved over recent years,
partly in response to national
economic visions,
demographics, diversification
priorities and shifts in business
models. New sectors such as
dark kitchens, entertainment,
and e-commerce and new
digitalisation and tech trends
are changing land use and
reshaping how economic
zones operate, their purpose
and who they serve.




National needs — such as net
zero targets and food security
— are also providing an
impetus for innovation and
new infrastructure
development.

The post-COVID-19 relaxation
of border controls has driven
activity with a significant
increase in demand for
industrial space, warehousing
and specialist free zone
services. Research suggests
that the global storage and
warehouse leasing market is
poised to grow by around
USD 88 billion between 2022
and 2026, with a CAGR of
7.4%.

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Financial
Statements

Developments such as digital
services, green warehouses
and integrated logistics are
acting as competitive
advantages for Economic
Cities & Free Zones around the
world.

AD Ports
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Business Review

The Economic Cities & Free Zones Cluster
provides AD Ports Group with revenue
generated by long-term contracts in
nationally important industrial sectors
that stimulate growth through cross-
Cluster synergies and leverage the
unigue ecosystem to drive national
economic growth.

Following a breakthrough year that saw the Economic Cities &
Free Zones Cluster integrate KIZAD and ZonesCorp into one
powerful and streamlined body, the Group is now responsible for
the region’s largest integrated trade, logistics and industrial hub.
It is now the biggest operator of purpose-built economic zones
and workers’ residential cities in the region.

o The Economic Cities & Free Zones
Cluster made enormous progressin
o 2022 in diversifyingits assets through

of the UAE’s total industrial area. acquisition and integration. Its
successes have supported the

expansion of dedicated ecosystems

for strategic industries in the country,
boosting access to international
markets, integrating advanced
technologies, and accelerating the
transition to a circular economy. Aligned
with the Group’s objectives as an
end-to-endintegrated global trade hub,

the Cluster completed a year that saw it
radically transform its scope of services
and ecosystems to help businesses
thrive in today’s competitive market.
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Financial headlines

In 2022, the Economic Cities & Free
Zones Cluster’s revenue increased by 6%
toreach AED 1,658 million, up from AED
1,568 millionin 2021. The Cluster
contributed 28% to Group revenuein
2022, andits EBITDA reached AED 1,087
million — implying a 66% EBITDA margin.

KEZAD Group

InSeptember 2022, the Group
announced the integration of Khalifa
Industrial Zone Abu Dhabi (KIZAD) and
Specialised Economic Zones
(ZonesCorp) into the newly formed
KEZAD Group (Khalifa Economic Zones
Abu Dhabi Group) as part of its plan to
consolidate and grow its Economic
Cities & Free Zones offering. KEZAD
Group comprises 12 economic zones
with a total area of 550 km?, including
100 km? designated as free zones.

KEZAD Group was establishedin
alignment with the economic vision of
Abu Dhabiand the recently launched
Abu Dhabilndustrial Strategy. The latter
sets out to more than double the
manufacturing sector in the emirate to
AED 172 billion, increase non-oil exports
by 148% to AED 179 billion and create
more than 13,000 jobs by 2031.
Reflecting these strategies, the Groupis
evolving towards offering integrated
economic nerve centres rather than
stand-alone industrial zones, providing
greater opportunities for companies
looking to optimise every supply chain
segment. The integration of KIZAD and
ZonesCorp also brings a unified, end-to-
end approach much closer to businesses
in criticalindustries, including logistics,
foodand AgriTech, metals, automotive,
plastic, polymers, and speciality
chemicals, by providing industry-specific
solutions and infrastructure to improve
industry competitiveness.

Shortly followingits formation, KEZAD
Group announced in November 2022
that it had signed an agreement with
TotalEnergies Renewables Distributed
Generation Middle East & Africa, an
affiliate of TotalEnergies. The dealaims
to explore opportunities to solarise
assetsacross KEZAD’s industrial
ecosystem.

12 economic zones
in Abu Dhabi

550 KM?

land bank, the
largest economic
zones Cluster in
the region

More than
1,850 customers

+70K jobs created
within the zones

Multimodel
connectivity via air,
road, sea and rail

+40 staoff
residential cities

+420,000
bed capacity
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Business Review continued
Economic Cities & Free Zones continued

With 550 km? — including 100 km?
designated as free zones - KEZAD
Group’s economic ecosystems are well
positioned to generate far-reaching
benefits from TotalEnergies’ distributed
solar solutions, enabling the Group to
produce clean energy across its sites.
The realisation of solar generation also
enhances the value proposition that the
Group can offer toits investors while
supporting Abu Dhabiand the UAE’s
sustainability goals — and its objective
tobecome anet exporter

of clean energy.

The existence of KEZAD Group as a
newly integrated body unleashes
significant opportunities to scale up
adjacent businesses, such as KEZAD
Communities, which provides
integrated solutions for staff
residential communities and enables
the Group to unlock the value of its
significant land bank.

KEZAD Communities

With a view to ramping up its staff
accommodation operations, the Group
announced the merger of KEZAD
Communities with the sustainability-
focusedreal estate development and
management company Al Eskan Al
Jamae. The dealinstantly created Abu
Dhabi’s largest integrated staff
accommodation company, with the
Group retaining a majority stake.

KEZAD Communities provides its
customers with integrated staff
accommodation solutions. KEZAD
Communities manages over 40
residential cities with a capacity of more
than 420,000 beds and arange of
amenities, including medical centres,
gardens, sports areas, dining halls,
mosques, and services such as
supermarkets and laundry facilities.

AD Ports Group
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Build-to-suit solutions

As part of its strategic focus on building
bespoke infrastructure and solutions
tailored to a client’s specific
requirements, KEZAD Group signed an
agreement to design, develop and lease
the UAE’s largest fulfilment centre for
Noonin2022. The 15-year agreement
leverages the build-to-suit (BTS)
development solutions to fast-track a
115,000 m? fulfilment centreon a
252,000 m?plot.

The facility, scheduled to be deliveredin
2024, is being developedas a
sustainable building conforming to
Estidama 2 Pearlrating. It incorporates
initiatives to enable water, energy and
waste minimisation and local material
use resulting in reduced transportation
emissions and boosting the local
economy.

With new automation technologies for
storage, material movement, and
sorting, the facility will enable rapid
delivery of products to millions of Noon
customers throughout the UAE. It will
bolster the local economy by creating
15,000 new jobs.

The BTS approach andits industrial
clustering strategy allow KEZAD Group
to co-locate complementary industries
and service providers into designated
areas based on how they can best serve
and support one another. Gathering
collective industry expertise enables the
Group to create value by leveraging
anchor clients and facilitating synergies
to foster value chains and catalyse skills
and talents.

KEZAD Utilities

Value chains across the country will be
further enriched by the development of
KEZAD Utilities, providing organisations
with cutting-edge infrastructure
networks for power, clean water, and
on-site gas. KEZAD Ultilities and its
ongoing gas network expansion are
designed to ensure long-termreliable,
efficient and cost attractive supply for
all manufacturing, storage and
distribution activities to support future
economic development.

Major new contracts
Leveragingits expertise and integrated
approach, KEZAD Group signed a major
lease agreement with the large UAE
dairy and juice company Al Rawabiin
2022. The agreement reflects the
Group’s commitment to driving the
UAE’s National Food Security Strategy
through the supply of high-quality dairy
and food products while also
contributing to the growth of the
nation’s industrial sector. Under the
terms of the contract, Al Rawabi will
establish a 2 km? dairy production
facility that will then scale up with a
further 3km?. With aninvestment of
AED 650 million, the dairy farm will be
home to 10,000 Al Rawabi cows.

KEZAD Group also signed a lease
agreement with Euro Auctions Middle
East, a subsidiary of Euro Auctions
Group, in 2022, to establish its largest
auction house in the region for industrial
plants, construction equipment, and
agricultural machinery. Under the
agreement, Euro Auctions Middle East
will expand its UAE operations in KEZAD
across a facility of more than 43,000 m?,
with site operations scheduled to
commencein Q12023. The
development of the Euro Auctions
project will provide existing and future
customers with facilities that can
supplement their business
reqguirements through a globally
renowned facility, which will bring
best-in-class practices to streamline
storage and transportation while
providing a transparent bidding process.

Future outlook

Akey focus for the Economic Cities &
Free Zones Cluster will be attracting
localand foreign direct investment over
the coming period. It willdo so by
leveraging new synergies and business
development opportunities emerging
from the creation of KEZAD Group,
which is committed to creating
competitive business ecosystems that
encourage sustainable growth through
an open, agile, and integrated
environment.



The Cluster will also seek to capitalise on
the vast potential emanating from the
deal with TotalEnergies Renewables
Distributed Generation. These form part
of a broader strategy for diversifying
revenue streams through adding new
services - such as waste management
- and through greater access to
high-value markets such as chemicals,
life sciences, e-commerce, metals and
automotive. This comprehensive
approach tointegration and
diversification will prove pivotalin the
Group’s ability to realise its contribution
to delivering on the Abu DhabiIndustrial
Strategy andits associated
socioeconomic outcomes.

Environmental,
Social & Financial
Governance Statements
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Clusters

Ports

Around the world, the
pandemic created a significant
disruption for ports, their
productivity and their service
provision. Perhaps now more
than ever before, global trade
routes depend upon port
infrastructure and capabilities
that are cost-effective,
efficient and digitally
integrated - and locked into a
comprehensive logistics
framework. In short, the
post-pandemic ports business
iS more streamlined,
integrated and capable.
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Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Financial
Statements

To keep the emirate of Abu
Dhabiahead of the game, the
Group’s Ports Cluster has
invested billions of dollars into
new port infrastructure and
has forged new partnerships
with global players so that it
can provide international
trade with the most advanced
solutions. Strategic
agreements and acquisitions
have also offered the Cluster
greater reach and even more
sector diversification.

Ports around the world are
being reshaped by an
accelerated digital
transformation and
decarbonisation. The Ports
Cluster, through Magta
Gateway and its investments
in cleaner solutions, is
integrating advanced artificial
intelligence and automation
technologies, and arange of
cleaner fuels such as hydrogen
products and green ammonia.
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Ports

Celebrating 50 years of Zayed Port and
10 years of Khalifa Port, the Ports Cluster
delivered substantial organic and
inorganic growth in 2022, solidifying Abu
Dhabi’s position as a global trade hub.

Strategically situated midway between Abu Dhabi and Dubai and
offering its customers access to 25 major shipping lines with
direct links to over 70 international destinations, Khalifa Port is an
18.5 m deep-water multipurpose port that includes two
Container terminals, a Ro-Ro terminal and leading regional Bulk,
General and Project Cargo handling capacity, all fully integrated
with KEZAD Group, providing a gateway to international markets
via multi-modal connectivity including future rail.

Metrictonnes

volume of General & Bulk Cargo processed.

TEUs

total Container capacity.

Cruise passengers

receivedin Abu Dhabi.

36 AD Ports Group
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022




Strategic
Report

Through significant diversification

of its port services and enhanced
partnerships with local and global
market leaders, the Ports Cluster
expanded its operations to overcome
global supply chain challengesin 2022.
By year-end, the Cluster had exceeded
its targets and fully integrated its
facilities and services to meet the
diverse needs of customers from
around the world.

Grappling with post-COVID supply chain
issues and the growingimpact on trade
flows stemming fromrising freight
rates (which peaked around mid-year
and then steadily reversed), the Ports
Cluster overcame the sector headwinds
by achieving new business wins and by
diversifyingits customer base. The
Cluster captured a greater share of
business in the region and worked to
fortify its relationships with
international entities in neighbouring
countries and beyond.

Inline with the AD Ports Group’s
strategicimperative as a fully integrated
end-to-end provider of global trade
solutions, the Ports Cluster accelerated
its service diversification strategy in
2022 with best-in-class Container,

Dry Bulk, Cruise, Ro-Ro services. Organic
growth also saw a significant increasein
steeland other high-value Dry Bulk
Cargo segments.

Financial headlines

In2022, the Port Cluster’s revenue
increased by 7% year-on-year toreach
AED 1135 million, up from AED 1,063
millionin 2021. The Port Cluster
contributed 20% to Group revenuein
2022, andits EBITDA grew 9% to AED 639
million — up from AED 587 million in 2021.

Container volumes

A series of joint ventures for the
container business created a natural
incentive for shipping lines to
consolidate volumesin terminalsin
which they own equity stakes - helping
toincrease volumes at Khalifa Port.
Consequently, the port handled arecord
of 4.33 million twenty-foot equivalent
units (TEUs), placing Khalifa Port among
the top 50 container ports in the world.
Thisis compared to 3.39 million TEUs in
2021. Furthermore, according to the
latest World Bank Container Port
Performance Index — based on data
from shipping lines — Khalifa Port ranked
5th globally in terms of efficiency in
handling containers. The closest UAE
competitoris rankedin the 30s.

Khalifa Port expansion
Inalandmark moment, His Highness
Sheikh Mohamed Bin Zayed Al Nahyan,
President of the UAE, inaugurated the
Khalifa Port expansionin December
2022. The new South Quay at Khalifa
Port represents a major turning pointin
the UAE’s global trade and logistics
capabilities, enhancing AD Ports Group’s
contribution to the diversification and
growth of the UAE’s national economy.

The expansionincluded the development
of the South Quay, and expanding the
portareafrom2.43to8.63km?. The
length of the quay wallincreased from 2.3
to12.5km, and the project has delivered
an additional 21 berths with the ability to
provide customised services to individual
strategic industry sectors. The
development makes it one of the most
prominent deep-water portsinthe world,
with an estimated value of AED 20.4
billion. Furthermore, it accelerates AD
Ports Group’s objective to increase the
capacity of Khalifa Port to reach 15 million
TEUs and 25 million tonnes of General
Cargo by 2030.
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Construction also commenced for the
new container terminal, CMA CGM
Terminals Khalifa Port, in 2022. The first
phase saw the installation of a 90O-tonne
block for the quay wall, and the terminal
is expected to be fully operational by the
first half of 2025. The Group will support
the development with a wide range of
marine infrastructure, including a
detached breakwater, a fully built-out
rail platform and Tmillion m? of terminal
yard. Once complete, the new terminal
will see increased connectivity to global
markets for Khalifa Port, drive increased
trade volumes and add new trade links
with other high-profile ports, boosting
the UAE’s economy.

Portinfrastructure

InMay 2022, the Ports Cluster entered
into a milestone agreement with the
international logistics service provider
Alexander Global Logistics. The
strategic partnership agreement sets
out plans for both parties to work
closely to establish and launch a
transshipment hub dedicated to
handling wood pulp and paper products,
which operates from Khalifa Port.



The agreement represents a landmark
moment in Khalifa Port’s ongoing
development to support the UAE’s
industrialisation efforts andis also an
important step forward in Abu Dhabi’s
transformationinto a regional leader for
pulp and paper products. In the first
stage of the agreement, completedin
Q32022, a total of 20,000 m? of
quayside warehouses was established
at Khalifa Port, acting as a springboard
for forestry products to be distributed
into the Gulf region and beyond.
Progress was also madeinthe
development of Abu Dhabi’s first
greenfield commercial bulk liquid storage
terminal, whichis being constructed as
part of a strategic agreement with
Saudi-based Arabian Chemical Terminals
(ACT). Similarly, a new agreement was
signed with Eni Abu Dhabi to develop a
new logistics base at Mugharraqg Port to
support offshore drilling operationsin
the AlDhafraregion. The project will see
the development of a dedicated quay
walland an assembly yard, supported by
logistical equipment and additional
manpower. Mugharrag Port was
recognised as aninternational port
facility by the UAE’s Ministry of Energy
and Infrastructure in 2022, in alignment
with the guidelines of the International
Code for the Security of Ships and Port
Facilities (ISPS Code).

Strategic
Report

Aqaba - Jordan

Significant progress was made in the
construction of the first-ever cruise
terminalin the Jordanian city of Agaba
in2022. The development — earmarked
to openinJanuary 2023 - is the first of
five strategic projects planned by the
Group, whichis part of the country’s
journey towards building a modern
tourism, logistics and transport sector.
The Agaba Cruise Terminal not only
offers anunprecedented opportunity to
tap into the fast-growing international
cruise industry but also supports the
Group’sinternational growth strategy
by leveraging Agaba’s pivotal location
and vast potential as aregional hub on
the Red Sea.

Celebrating 50 years

In December 2022, AD Ports Group
collaborated with the Central Bank of
the UAE (CBUAE) to celebrate His
Highness Sheikh Mohamed bin Zayed Al
Nahyan, President of the UAE’s
inauguration of Khalifa Port’s
expansion. The collaboration, which saw
theissuance of 1,000 commemorative
silver coins, came in conjunction with
the 50th anniversary of Zayed Port and
the 10th anniversary of Khalifa Port.

Bearing the names Zayed Port and
Khalifa Port alongside an engraved
drawing of Khalifa Port, the
commemorative coins were designed to
reflect the significance of the portsin
their ongoing contribution to positioning
as aleadingregionaland global hub.

Future outlook

Over the coming period, the Ports
Cluster will continue to accelerate the
diversification of its offering and logistics
capabilities to support AD Ports Group’s
role as anintegrated, end-to-end
provider of services and products across
global trade routes. By year-end 2022,
work was underway to create new
corridors for the movement of green
energies, such as green ammonia and
hydrogen products, in addition to new
logistics capabilities for Dry Bulk Cargo.

Further facilities will also be added on the
North Quay in Khalifa Port, while
operations in key geographies of Jordan,
Egypt andlragare expected to gather
pace. The Cluster will also invest in equity
and concession agreements and work to
integrate new acquisitions while finding
greater synergies across the Group and
optimising its current portfolio.

AD Ports Group
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Maritime

The Maritime Cluster includes
SAFEEN, OFCO and

Abu Dhabi Maritime, the
custodian and regulator

of Abu Dhabi’s waterways.

Boasting an experienced team who work around
the clock across our ports and beyond, we offer
high-quality, cost-effective services such as
pilotage, bunkering, harbour tug and towing and
Vessel Traffic Services (VTS). We also provide
feedering services, vessel-to-vessel

transshipment, offshore and onshore logistics As the impact of the
and support, while maintaining safe waterways pandemic unfolded in 2020,
for Abu Dhabi. global maritime trade flows

declined by 3.8%. While the
slowdown was rapid, so too
was the recovery. As borders
relaxed and consumer
confidence returned, trade
flows recovered by 3.2% in
2021, adding 11 billion tonnes to
global maritime trade.
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The revival of maritime trade
has, however, continued to
face legacy challenges that
included unprecedented port
congestion, and global
logistics log jams, resulting in
higher freight rates and less
reliable services.

The world’s fragile recovery
was also, to some extent,
frustrated by the ramifications
of the war in Ukraine and new
waves of COVID-19 that
disrupted supply chains,
particularly in China. Early
analysis suggests that
maritime trade growth may
have slowed to 1.4% in 2022
with shifts in trade patterns
and partners. But thisis still
growth — not a retraction.

As we look ahead to the near
future, there may well be
continued challenges related
to growing geopolitical risks.
These could lead some parts
of the world to pivot towards
national production and
increase aretreat from
globalisation. The maritime
sector must adjust to the
demand for more resilience
and sustainability, including
the need to decarbonise and
transition to alternative
sources of energy.
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Maritime

Almost tripling its revenues, the
Maritime Cluster delivered a quantum
leap performance in 2022, accelerating
its role as a fully integrated facilitator of
global trade and a steward of Abu Dhabi
Maritime assets.

2022 was a year that saw the Cluster rapidly become a more
comprehensive provider of services and products, with a
synergistic portfolio of assets with different market cycles to
limit business performance volatility. The rapid acceleration of
the maritime business’ operations has contributed significantly
to the Group’s surge in revenues and profitability, accounting for
36% of the Group’s total revenue. This has been driven by new
acquisitions, joint ventures, market entries and the expansion of
its service offering.

Highlightsin 2022 included the In 2022, the Maritime Cluster’s revenue
numerous acquisitions, expansion of its increased by 253% to reach AED 2,141
Container and Bulk shipping fleet, the million, up from AED 607 millionin 2021.
addition of new offshore assets and The Cluster contributed 36% to Group
further expansion into the Subsea revenuein 2022, andits EBITDA reached
segment. Additionally, the provision of AED 648 million - implyinga 30%
services in Saudi Arabia and Kuwait as EBITDA margin.

well as a shipping network that reaches
from Southeast Asia to the Red Sea
signalled arapid acceleration of the
Group’s globalreach.

owned

Revenue Container
increased and Bulk

by vessels
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Service and product
development

The Group’s internationally diversified
maritime and offshore vessel business,
SAFEEN Group, significantly expanded
its services in 2022 organically and
inorganically. Organically it acquired
assets for deployment across the Gulf
and the Indian subcontinent, with the
Group gaining the capacity to service
markets from China to East Africa and
the Red Sea by the end of the year.

The Cluster also added toits
transshipment services, Bulk, Crude and
Liquid Shipping, which offer further
growth potential for the Group. While
the initial subsea opportunity lies largely
in oiland gas, there is significant scope
for the development of emerging and
ancillary services. This enables the
Group to offer truly integrated, end-to-
end, diverse, and comprehensive
services and products across global
trade routes.

Abu Dhabi Maritime, part of the
Maritime Cluster, assumed responsibility
for all ferry services operating within
Abu Dhabi’s waterways in 2022.
Working with the Department of
Municipalities and Transport (DMT),

Abu Dhabi Maritime has now integrated
the Ferry Operations Branch of the
Integrated Transport Centre (ITC) under
the scope of its services.

The agreement will see the Cluster
manage and oversee the daily operation
of the emirate’s two major ferry lines —
the Dalma Island Water Transport
Service, which connects Dalma Island
and Jebel Dhanna Port, and the Al Aliah
Island Water Transport Service, which
connects Al Aliah Island and Al Saadiyat
Istand. The move will also help enhance
the sector’s contribution to Abu Dhabi’s
non-oil GDP by enhancing the user
experience and further attracting the
localand global community to explore all
that our maritime domain has to offer.

Geographic expansion
Geographic expansionis a core
component of the Group’s strategic
plan,andin 2022 the Maritime Cluster
entered significant new geographies.
Through the signing of a shareholder
agreement with Kazmortransflot
(KMTF), a unit of Kazakhstan’s state
energy company KazMunayGas, the
Group has entered a highly promising
market with major opportunities in the
Caspian Sea.

The agreement will result in ajoint
venture, which will look at investments
opportunistically and offer a broad
range of services, including offshore
support vessels, integrated offshore
logistics and subsea solutions and, at a
later stage, Container Feedering, Ro-Ro
and crude oil transportationin the
Caspian Sea and the Black Sea.

The agreement with KMTF also provides
the Group with opportunities to support
the many ongoing upgrades of fleets
and facilities currently taking placein
the Caspian region, in addition to major
offshore projects, such as the multi-
billion-dollar expansion of the Kashagan
field. The Group and KMTF also signed a
seven-year vessel pooling agreement,
allowing for the provision of tankers for
the transportation of crude oil
internationally.
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Maritime continued

Acquisitions and joint ventures
The Maritime Cluster signed a series of
transactions with organisations across
the maritime value chainin 2022,
providing immediate access to new
markets and services.

InFebruary 2022, the Group acquired
Divetech Marine Engineering Services, a
UAE-based topside-subsea solutions
provider that offers arange of services,
including installation, inspection, repair
and maintenance for ports and other
maritime organisations. The acquisition
represents animportant strategic
opportunity for growth, enabling AD
Ports Group to integrate a dynamic
company with a significant pipeline of
potential new business intoits existing
operations. This acquisition also enables
the Maritime Cluster to provide a fully
holistic service offering that includes
undersea inspection, maintenance and
repair.

The Group also signed a deal with the
National Marine Dredging Company in
June 2022 to set up ajoint venture to
carry out Offshore Surveys and offer
subsea services in the UAE, GCC and
selectedinternational markets. The joint
venture, whichis called SAFEEN Surveys
and Subsea Services, offers a portfolio
comprising offshore geophysicaland
geotechnical surveys, trenching, and
dredging support services. The newly

fRrten A7
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formed joint venture will also provide
ancillary services such as commercial
diving licences, remotely operated
vehicles and unmannedinspections
vessels, along with customised solutions
tailored for offshore operations related
to the oil, gas and renewable energy
sectors.

In September, the Group made its first
international acquisitions when it
acquired a 70% stake in Transmar
International Shipping International
“Transmar” and Transcargo International
TCl. The acquisitions provide the Group
with a platform that ensures further
growthin container and cargo volumes
as wellas port operations in Egypt, North
Africa, the Gulf region, and the entire Red
Searegion.

The Group announced the largest
acquisitioninits history in November
2022 whenit purchased an 80% equity
stake in Dubai-based Global Feeder
Shipping (GFS). Aligning GFS services
with the Group’s companies SAFEEN
Feedersand Transmar willmake it the
region’s largest independent feeder
company by vessels owned, with a fleet
of 35 vessels. The acquisition makes the
Group the third largest globally by
volumes carried, with a total container
capacity of close to 100,000 TEUs. It also
provides significant economies of scale
through an expandedroute network and

strengthens the company’s hub and
spoke model by linking core marketsin
the Gulf, Indian Subcontinent, Red Sea,
and Turkey toits key port assets,
including Khalifa Port.

As for long-term contracts, a15-year
contract with Emirates Steel was also
signed, in addition to new medium-term
offshore services contracts.

Another milestone was the signing of a
major joint venture agreement with
Invictus Investment to launch a new
international Dry Bulk shipping service.
Thejoint venture helps the Group to
further diversify its portfolio of
international Dry Bulk services that it
provides for its customers and
strengthens food security in the region
and around the world. The joint venture
will also extend commercial bulk
shipping services to other companies
globally, with aninitial focus on the Red
Sea and Pacific corridors, the Indian
Subcontinent and the Black Searegion.

In Apriland September 2022, the
Maritime Cluster signed a series of
high-value, long-term contracts with the
Bangladeshifirm Saif Powertec,
including a 15-year trade facilitation and
shipping agreement to facilitate trade
and cargo services from Fujairah to
Bangladesh. As part of the collaboration,
SAFEEN Feeders provides eight
Supramax bulk carriers with 55,000
deadweight tonnage (DWT) capacity.

The breadth of deals signedin 2022
provides the Group with a much greater
diversity of income streams and an even
greater ability to weather economic
cycles across different geographies and
services.



Rates and resilience

While 2022 closed with exceptional
financial outcomes, the analysis also
points towards a downward pressure on
container rates during the second half of
the year. By contrast, the tanker and
offshore markets increased over the
period. This demonstrates the
importance of a diverse product and
service portfolio that provides resilience
across different business cycles. Looking
ahead, container rates are forecast to
stabilise in the near term.

Providing greater stability for the long
term, the Group’s diverse and integrated
model allows it to cope with ongoing
geopolitical and global economic
uncertainties and to mitigate the ebb
and flow of individual business
segments. Furthermore, the expansion
of supply chain density to other markets
- inaddition toits ability to deliver energy
assets toits customers within the region
- provides the Group with even greater
resilience during periods of uncertainty.

Sustainability

In tandem with the development of a
comprehensive environment, social and
governance (ESG) strategy, the
Maritime Cluster implemented a series
of reformsin 2022. These included the
initiation of two cleaner fuel pilot
projects that include electrically
powered vessels and dual-fuel
technologies that leverage hydrogen
and biofuels for hybrid vessels.

Strategic
Report

i

These developments - and the wider
Group ESG strategy - align with the
2023 Year of Sustainability launched by
the President of the UAE. The Year of
Sustainability, which coincides with
COP28, showcases the UAE’s
commitment towards fostering a global
collaboration in seeking innovative
solutions to challenges, such as energy,
climate change and other pressing
issues related to sustainability.

Human capital and operations
In addition toits alignment with and
adherence to Group HR policies and
procedures, the Maritime Cluster
delivered uponits people policy by
developingitsin-house capabilities and
through the appointment of multiple
talents from across the country and
international markets.

Future outlook

The Cluster began 2022 with a clear
canvas of opportunity for specific
areas of maritime product and service
development. With these having
happened, the Clusterisnowina
strong position to leverage its 2022
transformation for ambitious
international growth and is exceptionally
well placed for the rapid acceleration of
its operations around the world.

As we look to 2023, the business will
continue to seek organic and inorganic
growth in multiple geographies,
achieving greater scale through the
expansion of vessels, services and
products - in areas as diverse as Liquid,
Offshore, Subsea, Container Feedering
and Bulk.

AD Ports Group
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Within the context of
pandemic-induced supply
chainissues and a digital
revolution, every industry
sector and its means of
connectivity have been
reshaped over the past three
years. Underpinned by
investment in physical
infrastructure and enabled by
digital solutions, trade logjistics
is set to become smarter,
faster, more efficient and
more nuanced in its industry-
specific capabilities.
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Abu Dhabi benefits from its
unique geographic location,
global connectivity by air, land
or sea — and technologically
advanced modern
infrastructure.

Abu Dhabiis already a major
focus for global logistics
providers, who recognise the
enormous growth
opportunities for the emirate.
Furthermore, advanced digital
innovations from within the
Group’s Digital Cluster support
the Logistics Cluster’s ability
to integrate its single-window
approach across borders and
entire value chains.

As such, and within the
context of a rapidly changing
global economy, the Group’s
Logistics Clusteris well placed
to reimagine the national,
regional and international
logistics landscape.
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Business Review

Logistics

Serving as the primary logistics arm of AD
Ports Group, the Logistics Cluster’s mission
is to be a top-10 global supply chain provider

of choice delivering hol

istic, fully integrated,

and technologically innovative end-to-end

logistics solutions that

drive competitive

value for its customers.

It operates approximately 360,000 m? of multi-temperature storage
space, backed by an advanced fleet of over 400 vehicles, andis
capable of serving a marketplace of over 4.5 billion consumers across
the Middle East, Asia, Africa and Europe thanks to Abu Dhabi’s
strategic position and the combined capabilities of AD Ports Group
and its partners. It serves multiple industry sectors including project
logistics, industrials, oiland gas, polymers, healthcare, food and

2022 was a breakthrough year that saw
AD Ports Group listed on the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, accelerating its
capabilities as a comprehensive
end-to-end provider of services and
products across global trade routes.
Within this transformational context,
the Group’s Logistics Cluster, which
withinits portfolio operates AD Ports
Logistics (ADPL) and MICCO Logistics
(MICCO), moved to diversify its services
andinfrastructure to achieve greater

diversity, reach and resilience.
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beverage, FMCG, port services, automotive, aviation, and exhibitions.

Its milestone achievement of 2022 was
the acquisition of Noatum, a major
globallogistics player, thereby signalling
the Cluster’s intent on establishing a
leading presence in all major global
markets via an expansion strategy
focused on organic growth, acquisitions,
joint ventures, and partnerships.

The Logistics Cluster’s financial
performancein 2022 wasimpacted by a
number of factors, including reductionin
the vaccine business with the easing of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the revision of a
contract with akey client, and temporary
lower volumes due to the non-availability
of empty containers for exports.




Strategic
Report

Despite these challenges, the Logistics
Cluster delivered arobust performancein
line with previous years. By year-end, its
revenues were 12% down onreported
figures and 6% down on a like-for-like
basis compared to 2021, but EBITDA
improved considerably ona AED 73 million
one-off gain to reach AED 188 million.

New lines of business
Supporting its diversification drive, the
Logistics Cluster launched a new
distribution business line that will see it
secure exclusive distributionrights for a
range of healthcare products. The new
business line targets the GCC’s fast-
growing healthcare and life sciences
sector, whose market size is projected to
increase at a CAGR of around 5% to AED
366 billionin 2023 from AED 317 billion
in2020.

As a distributor licensed by the UAE
Ministry of Health and the Abu Dhabi
Department of Health, the Logistics
Cluster will procure high-in-demand
healthcare products, including
pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, medical
devices, baby products and
nutraceuticals from leading
manufacturers seeking to access the
UAE and GCC markets, and manage
end-to-end product storage and
deliveries to hospitals, clinics,
pharmacies, wholesalers, and retailers.

In 2022, MICCO signed a milestone
agreement with the Abu DhabiNational
Exhibitions Company (ADNEC) in
collaboration with the international
logistics service provider DB Schenker.
The agreement saw MICCO becoming
the preferred logistics provider of
ADNEC and signalled MICCO’s expansion
into the event logistics sector. The
partnership was evidenced with MICCO
assuming the responsibility for
managing logistics for the International
Defence Exhibition & Conference (IDEX)
2023, the largest defence industry
exhibition in the Middle East region.

Acquisitions
Inalandmarkinternational deal, AD
Ports Group acquired Noatum, a major
integrated global logistics provider
headquarteredin Spain, in late 2022.
With a presence in 26 countries across
North America, Latin America, Asia
(including India and China), Africa and
Europe, Noatum operates an asset-light
model with a high cash conversion rate
that allows the business to make an
immediate contribution to the Logistics
Cluster’s financials.

The acquisition, whichiis currently
pending approvals from relevant
regulators, provides the Group with
exposure to maritime activities in the
Mediterranean region and port facilities
in Spain. The deal significantly broadens
the Group’s footprint and positions it
among the world’s leading logistics and
freight forwarding companies. It also
makes the Group one of the most
significant global players in finished
venhicle logistics.

AD Ports Group
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Logistics continued

Operational advancements
Inline with the Group’s diversification
strategy, the Logistics Cluster, along
with the Economic Cities & Free Zones
Cluster, paved the way for the opening
of the new advanced food warehousing
centre, KEZAD Logistics Park 21 (KLP21),
in2022. Comprising four warehouses
with over 80,000 m? of space and
100,000 pallets capacity, KLP21is one of
the largest and most advanced
temperature-controlled logistics
centresin the region designed to
support the upcoming 3.3 km? Abu
DhabiFood Hub. The Cluster operates
one of the centre’s four 20,000 m?
warehouses, which incorporates six
multi-temperature chambers capable
of accommodating 45,000 pallets at
storage temperatures of between
-26°Cand25°C.

As part of its polymers business, the
Logistics Cluster has over 280,000 m? of
warehousing space located both inside
and adjacent to Khalifa Port and
manages 3.5 million tonnes of annual
throughput serving both local, regional
and international markets. The portis
the only maritime facility within the UAE
to offer amodern semi-automated
polymers packing plant capable of filling
2,000 bags per hour, and handling over
700,000 tonnes of polymers per year.

Operationaladvancements led to
MICCO acquiring 43 state-of-the-art
trucks as part of its ongoing
commitment to upgrade its fleet of
400+ chilled, frozen,ambient and flat
trailer vehicles. The ongoing upgrades
will support business growth, boost
service quality and reduce operational
costs, while at the same time driving
fuel efficiency and reducing carbon
emissions.

AD Ports Group
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Advanced technologies
Theintroduction and application of
advanced technologies are at the
forefront of the Logistics Cluster’s
operations, with a strategic commitment
to study, employ and pilot the latest
technological solutions. The overarching
objectiveis to enhance the Group’s
value-chain services toits customers,
reduce costs, and lower the Logistics
Cluster’s environmental footprint.

Specifically, the Logistics Cluster utilises
the premium warehouse management
system designed to optimise system-
driven warehouse operations, an
advanced fleet dispatching system
allowingfor real-time delivery
management and temperature
monitoring, and a simplified electronic
cargo sealing solution called E-Seal, which
eliminates the potential for tampering of
goods transported within containers.

Furthermore, the Cluster uses mUnity, a
digital blockchain-enabled system that
tracks thejourney of temperature-
sensitive medical products from the point
of production to the last mile, while the
use of drones was piloted to reconcile
inventory using Radio Freguency
|dentification (RFID).
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International development
Over the course of 2022, the Logistics
Cluster signed two agreements with SEG
Enera, one of the largest multisectoral
holding companies in Uzbekistan, with
the goal of expandingits service
footprint into the Central Asian region.
The agreements set out plans for the
development of logistics, freight and
food tradinginfrastructure in the country
through the creation of a new logistics
and freight business. The Central Asian
countries are a major focus for strategic
development for the Cluster and the
entire Group.

ESG

Inline with the Group’s environmental,
socialand governance commitments,
the Logistics Cluster has taken several
significant steps that will greatly reduce
its carbon emissions and improve the
efficiency of its advanced transport
fleet. This work includes the retirement
of older vehicles and replacing them
with newer, more efficient models with
lower fuel consumption and lower
maintenance costs. As part of its fleet
modernisation strategy, the Clusteris
also exploring the potential of
converting some of its existing cargo
vehicles from diesel to electric power
and bringing in EV units as well, as the
technology matures and regulatory
environment develops.

In addition, the Cluster has tested the
use of advanced fuel additives on a trial
basis, which has shown to improve fuel
efficiency by up to 30% and has
introduced telematics for fleet
management, which drives the fleet’s
effectiveness by monitoring fuel
consumption and drivers’ habits, while
optimising delivery routes.

Across its warehousing infrastructure,
the Cluster has introduced advanced
solutions, including insulation materials
that deflect sunlight and reduce energy
usage, water recycling for irrigation, and
centralised refrigeration systems and
solar power to maximise energy
efficiency and reduce emissions.

Future outlook

The Cluster has made significant
progressinits shift from being a local
domestic player to an international
facilitator of global trade. Its
diversification efforts will deliver
greater global coverage, resilience,
growth, and sustainability as an
integrated logistics provider and a key
driver of AD Ports Group’s broader value
proposition. The approach will enable
the Group to serve every customer
through a single-window approach,
with one-stop-shop access to vessels,
marine equipment, digital solutions,
trucks, warehouses, industrial zones and
world markets.
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The digital transformation —
characterised by advances in
automation, artificial
intelligence and machine
learning — has created
enormous opportunities for
how supply chains work.

Analytics, particularly, are playing an increasingly
important role in increasing efficiencies,
productivity, costs and ease of doing business.
Digital innovations represent an exciting catalyst
for the mobilisation of container flows and for the
import and export of goods.



Environmental,
Social & Financial
Governance Statements

From bookings to regulatory
alignment, maintenance,
congestion and tracking,
digital solutions are an enabler
of business success and
economic development in the
UAE. On amacro level, they
help countries to build supply
chainresilience into the
broader logistics industry and
safeguard issues such as food
security and cybersecurity
through data exchange and
centralisation.

Maqgta Gateway is at the
forefront of this evolution. It is
aligned with the Group’s
strategy for the integration of
its Clusters’ services and for
the digital transformation of
Abu Dhabi’s maritime, trade
and government services.

Through its proprietary
licensing management, vessel
management, single-window
approach and advanced
payment gateway capabilities,
the Group’s Digital Cluster is
primed to accelerate and lead
the global digital port
transformation.
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Business Review

Digital

With double-digit revenue growthin
2022, the Digital Cluster surpassed 100
million transactions as it broke new
ground in opening new trade corridors
and accelerated access to the most
technologically advanced solutions for
integrated global trade.

Through Magta Gateway - a wholly owned subsidiary of AD
Ports Group - the Digital Cluster has developed a series of
advanced trade and logistics platforms since its inception in 2016.
Designed to catalyse and streamline global trade through
integrated digital solutions, the Cluster’s work has cemented the
Group’s fast-growing global reputation as an international end-
to-end maritime and logistics provider. Its pioneering work in
2022 included piloting a drone delivery service in collaboration
with the Emirates Post Group and the aerial logistics provider,
SkyGo.

Financial headlines

In 2022, the Digital Cluster’s revenue
increased by 11% to AED 400 million, up
from AED 360 million in 2021. The Digital
Cluster contributed 7% to Group revenue
in2022,and its EBITDA grew to AED 218
million — up from AED 172 million in 2021.
The number of digital transactions
performed within the Cluster — a vital
measure of the Group’s performance
output - rose 123% to 42.2 millionin 2022.

The project aims to provide a
sustainable, user-friendly service that
canrapidly carry vital medical supplies,
fresh foods, and urgent documents
while providing real-time tracking. To
support the project, Magta Gateway
deploysitsintegrated digital
marketplace, Margo Hub, which
facilitates online customer transactions.
In turn, Emirates Post Group manages

the service and provides tracking and
status updates, while SkyGo provides
drone solutions. Drone delivery services
have the potential to enable greater
convenience and faster delivery times
for customers across Abu Dhabi while
ensuring a positive environmentalimpact.

AD Ports Group
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Advanced Trade and Logistics
Platform (ATLP)

In 2022 the Advanced Trade and
Logistics Platform (ATLP) passedits 100
millionth digital transaction. This
milestone has been made possible by
the rapid acceleration of the Group’s
activities at home and abroad and its
success in wideningits fleets and
launching new infrastructure.




ATLP also launched a new inspection
and clearance module. Integrating
directly with Abu Dhabi Customs’ online
services and regulatory authorities, as
well as supporting free zone, bonded
warehouse, and e-commerce
operations, the new inspection and
clearance module willnot only enable
traders to oversee their end-to-end
cargo clearance via ATLP but will also
enhance related processes in line with
the initiatives facilitating trade in the
emirate and the UAE in accordance with
global requirements and standards.

The platform also now hosts a newly
developed Food Import and Export
Management Information System
(FIEMIS), which was launched by the Abu
Dhabi Agriculture and Food Safety
Authority (ADAFSA) in October 2022.
FIEMIS provides a single window for
importers and exporters to conduct

Strategic
Report

their business, facilitate relevant
procedures, release food shipments
before arriving at the port, and track
import and export orders. The system is
also designed to support food trade and
import operations across Abu Dhabi’s
ports while ensuring food safety.

International development

The Digital Cluster established a new
virtual trade corridor with Kuwait in
2022 as part of growing trade relations
between the two countries and
following a diplomatic visit to the UAE.
The Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) sets out plans for Magta Gateway
to establish new policies, procedures and
systems integrations to support a virtual
trade corridor that will further simplify
and facilitate cross-border trade.

The deal also means that customs
authorities in both countries can access
pre-arrivalinformation for international
cargo movements, making cross-
validation of information significantly
faster and promoting pre-clearance of
goods. By digitising clearance and
shipment deliveries through a new
virtual trade corridor, the Digital Cluster
can deliver tangible benefits to
importers and exporters in Kuwait and
the UAE while simultaneously
enhancing security and realising new
levels of efficiency.

The evolution of the Kuwait trade
corridor also provides the Group with

a blueprint for similar expansion into
other emerging market across Africa,
Central Asia, the CIS region
(Commonwealth of Independent
States) and the broader Middle East.
The Digital Cluster is also well positioned
to accelerate workin these regions by
initiating government-to-government
(G2G@) relationships.

The Digital Cluster also paved the way
for the launch of the Agaba Cruise
Terminalin Jordan - the first outside
the UAE. The move bolsters the coastal
city’s position as a regional tourism
centre and gateway for travellers
visiting the Red Sea. The terminal also
marks the launch of the first of five
strategic projects planned between the

Group and Agaba Development
Corporation to advance the city’s
logistics and transport sectors. As part
of the agreement, the Group will
develop, manage and operate the
Agaba Cruise Terminal, which will be
used as aworld-class facility for
international cruise passengers looking
to visit Jordan, specifically Agaba,
Petraand Wadi Rum.

The Group’s work in Jordan serves to
enhance relations between the UAE and
Jordan, providing both countries with
the opportunity to develop mutually
beneficial trade ties. The Agaba Cruise
Terminal provides the Group with an
unprecedented opportunity to benefit
from the fast-growing cruise sector,
share its experience in operating
advanced cruise ship terminals and
accelerate the Group’s expansion plans.
The strategic location of the Agaba
region andits promising potentialas a
regional centre within the Red Sea
region also complements the Group’s
presence across regionaland global
trade routes.

Future outlook

ATLP s the official single window for
trade through sea, land (railand roads),
air, industrial and free zones in Abu
Dhabi. Enabling transparency,
predictability, simplified procedures and
efficiency for cross-border business
operations, the platform provides
integration to more than 40 public and
private entities across Abu Dhabiand
the UAE. In 2023 the Digital Cluster will
deliver organic and inorganic growth
through a continued focus on
developing new partnerships, digital
innovations and international
expansion. The Digital Cluster will
continue to play a centralrole in
supporting the Group’s activities,
growth and profitability by innovating
next-generation digital technologies
andintra-group synergies.
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Financial Review

Triple play growth strategy supports
strong results momentum

41% revenue growth and steady operating margins resulted in
EBITDA of AED 2,175 million in 2022, up 36% compared to the
previous year. The Maritime Cluster was a key factor in achieving
these results, with 253% revenue growth and 436% EBITDA
growth, mostly organic. With an overall EBITDA margin of 40% in
2022 AD Ports Group clearly outperformed industry benchmarks,
despite the growing contribution of the lower margin Maritime
Cluster, which now represents 36% of total revenue and 23% of
total EBITDA.

Net Profit for the year reached AED 1,284 million, up 51% compared
to the previous year as a result of the strong EBITDA performance.

Cash conversion improved in 2022, with cash from operating
activities at 75% of EBITDA, up from 49% in 2021.

Reflecting the accelerated growth strategy, capital expenditure
continued to increase to AED 5,521 million, with 43% of it invested in
the Maritime Cluster to expand vessel fleet across all business
segments (container, bulk, and offshore), 33% of it going into the
Ports Cluster for Khalifa Port expansion and the Etihad Rail
connection, and 19% of it funding the Economic Cities & Free Zones
for unlocking land, built-to-suit assets, and warehousing
capabilities. AD Ports Group continue to boast a well-balanced
capital structure and solid financial position as evidenced by our
Net Debt to EBITDA ratio of 2.0x at the end of the year.
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Financial Review continued

Targeting growth and improving returns

AD Ports Group started providing the market with medium term guidance
in Q3 2022 that was subsequently upgraded in Q4 2022 to factorin the
announced acquisitions of GFS, Noatum, and Al Eskan Al Jamae. Revenue,
EBITDA, and capital expenditure guidance is based on existing operations,
and therefore does not include any further M&A activity:

Revenue growth: 5-year CAGR of 25-30% between 2022 and 2027,
driven by Ports, Economic Cities & Free Zones, and Maritime Clusters

EBITDA growth: 5-year CAGR of 20-25% between 2022 and 2027,
with EBITDA margin trending down from 40-45% historically to 35-40%
in the short term. Revenue mix will determine where EBITDA margin
stabilize, with the Ports, Economic Cities & Free Zones, and Digital
Clusters supporting overall margins and the Maritime and Logistics
Clusters weighing on them.

During the period 2023-2027 capital expenditure programme of
AED 15 billion will be primarily spent on the Maritime, Economic Cities
& Free Zones, and Ports Clusters by order of guantum.

Given the long-term and sticky nature of AD Ports Group’s revenues thereis
a high level of confidence in achieving this relatively bold guidance.

As we move up the maturity curve across our five Clusters, we expect this
high-growth guidance to come with improved returns.

EBITDA (AED Mn) Total Net Profit (AED Mn)

2,175 Mn 1,284 Mn

+36% +51%
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EPS (AED) Totalassets
(AED Mn)

0.25 38,512 Mn

0.25 38,512
0.22 28,149
0.1 24,853
|
Cash from operating activities Capital expenditure (AED Mn) Net Debt/EBITDA (x)

o 5,521Mn 2.0x

1,626 5,521 2.0
787 3,125 2.3
| | |
421 2,880 2.4
| | |
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Financial Review continued

“Despite the global
geopolitical and economic
headwinds, AD Ports
Group continued to build
on its foundation in Abu
Dhabi by investing in
assets and creating trade
routes density. Strong
delivery in 2022 has
created significant
shareholder value and
provided widespread
opportunities for
sustained local, regional |
and international growth.” §
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Inline with its long-term strategy for
sustained corporate and financial
growth, AD Ports Group delivered
transformative new infrastructure and
significantly enhanced its geographic
reachin2022. Following numerous
acquisitions, the Group entered over 26
new markets and accelerated its
activities in high-growth service areas.
These factors contributed to historic
financial performance, operational
milestones and the beginning of a new
chapterin the Group’s history, defined
by diversification, international
expansion and alandmark listing on the
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX).

Consolidated performance
The Group’s revenue increased 41%
year-on-year to AED 5,498 million,
mainly driven by the Maritime Cluster
and effect from new acquisitions. On a
like-for-like basis, excluding M&A
activity during the year, revenue growth
reached23%.

EBITDA for the year grew 36% year-on-
year to AED 2,175 million, implying an
EBITDA margin of 39.6%. Key
contributions to EBITDA growth came
from the Maritime, Ports and Digital
Clusters. Some of the new businesses,
including those acquired during the year,
generated lower EBITDA margins
compared with existing businesses,
which led to a slight drop in the overall
EBITDA margin. On a like-for-like basis,
excluding M&A activity during the year,
EBITDA growth was 27 %.

Total Net Profit growth accelerated to
51% year-on-year reaching AED 1,284
million, implying a Net Profit margin of
22.7%.

Strategic
Report

Cluster performance

Within the Economic Cities & Free
Zones Cluster, 4.2 km? of new leases
(net) were signedin 2022. The Economic
Cities & Free Zones Cluster’s revenue
increased by 6% toreach AED 1,658
million, up from AED 1,568 million in
2021. Having undergone a significant
restructuring that merged KIZAD and
ZonesCorp into one unified body —
KEZAD Group - the Cluster further
diversified and signed long-term
contracts, including a 15-year deal with
Noon for a build-to-suit (BTS) fulfilment
centre. The agreement leverages the
power of the BTS development solution
to fast-track a 115,000 m? fulfilment
centreona 252,000 m?plot.

Economic Cities & Free Zones Cluster
recorded revenue increase of 6%
year-on-year toreach AED 1,658 million
in 2022, benefitting from previously
signed land leases, higher utilities
revenues, strong momentum in
warehouses revenues, as well as positive
revenue effect of previous contingent
asset related to leases out of Razeen
worker residential cities for COVID-19
isolation and quarantine purposes. The
Economic Cities & Free Zones Cluster
contributed 28% and 39% to the
consolidated revenue and EBITDA,
respectively, in 2022.

Within the Ports Cluster, container
throughput grew to 4.33 million TEUs
(twenty-foot equivalent units) in 2022, a
28% year-on-year increase. This
performance resulted in greater
utilisation of the two existing container
terminals, which continued to improve
to 51% utilisation in 2022 compared to
40% in 2021.

On a like-for-like basis, General Cargo
volumes increased by 3% toreach 31.7
million tonnes in 2022, compared with
44 .6 million tonnesin 2021, which
included a one-off sand supply project
of 14.7 million tonnes. Ro-Ro and Cruise
passenger volumes also rebounded
strongly on the back of the decreased
effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Overallrevenue for the Ports Cluster
grew by 7% year-on-year to AED 1,135
millionin 2022, backed by a healthy
product mix as well as revenue from the
acquisition of TCl, one of the two entities
under IACC, Egypt. Double-digit growth
in concession fees and leases as well as
strongreboundin the Ro-Ro and Cruise
businesses on the back of the abated
effect of the COVID-19 pandemic more
than offset the decline in General Cargo
revenue, which significantly benefited
from the sand supply contract in 2021.
On alike-for-like basis, Ports Cluster
revenue grew by 21% year-on-year,
when adjusted for both the sand supply
project and the TClacquisition. The
Ports Cluster contributed 20% and 23%
to the consolidated revenue and
EBITDA, respectively,in 2022.

All operationalindicators - vessel fleet,
port calls, container feedering volumes,
transshipment volumes, and marine
services activities - recorded strong
growth in the Maritime Cluster.

Ahighlight of the year for the Maritime
Cluster was the acquisition of an 80
percent equity stake in Dubai-based
Global Feeder Shipping (GFS), a global
container shipping company, for an
enterprise value of AED 2.9 billion. GFS is
the third largest feeder shipping
business globally, operating a
comprehensive service network of 20
services across the GCC, Red Sea, Indian
Subcontinent and Southeast Asia
regions. The acquisition of the GFS stake
places the Group as the largest pure
feeder operator in the region and the
third largest globally by container
capacity, which will be close to 100,000
TEUs. Moreover, the deal coincided with
the Group’s entry into the strategically
important central and eastern Europe
geography, following the signing of two
agreements to develop logistics, freight
and food trading infrastructure in
Uzbekistan. The transactionis expected
to closein Q2-2023.
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Financial Review continued

The Maritime Cluster revenue grew
253% year-on-year to AED 2,141 million
in 2022, mainly driven by a wider service
offeringandincreased activity in new
business segments, including feedering,
chartering, transshipment, and offshore
services. The Maritime Cluster added
four new companies to the portfolio in
2022: Divetech Marine Engineering
Services, Alligator Shipping Container
Line, Transmar, one of the two entities
part of IACC-Egypt, and SAFEEN Surveys
and Subsea Services. These new
businesses contributed to revenue and
EBITDA with AED 689 million and AED
150 millionin 2022, respectively, and are
expectedto continue to support the
Cluster’s growth going forward. The
Maritime Cluster contributed 36% and
23% to the consolidated revenue and
EBITDA, respectively, in 2022.

Inalandmark deal, the Logistics
Cluster acquired 100% ownership of
Noatum, a logistics services provider
with a presence in 26 countries across
five continents, for an enterprise value
of AED 2.2 billion. The value and
earnings accretive acquisition
significantly broadens the Group’s
global footprint and positions it among
the world’s leading logistics and freight
forwarding companies. The transaction
is expectedto closein Q2-2023.

The Logistics Cluster registered a12%
year-on-year revenue decline to AED
532 millionin 2022, mainly due to the
reduction in the vaccine business with
the easing of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the revision of a contract with a key
client from a short-term asset heavy to
alonger-term asset light model, as well
as temporary lower volumes due to the
non-availability of empty containers for
exports. The Logistics Cluster
contributed 9% and 7% to the
consolidated revenue and EBITDA,
respectively, in 2022.

AD Ports Group
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Therevenue of the Digital Cluster grew
by 11% year-on-year to AED 400 million
in 2022, driven by the development
progress of various technology-led
solutions. Digital transactions
performed within the Cluster — akey
measure of the Group’s performance
output - rose 123% to 42 millionin 2022.
The Digital Cluster contributed 7% and
8% to the consolidated revenue and
EBITDA, respectively,in 2022.

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash flow from operating activities
increased from AED 787 million in 2021
to AED 1,626 millionin 2022, up by 107%
despite the slower recovery post
COVID-19. This significant increase in
operating cash flows was mainly due to
improvement in working capital apart
from business growth.

Capital expenditure
Consolidated capital expenditure during
2022 was AED 5,521 million with
investments primarily in the Maritime,
Ports and Economic Cities & Free Zones
Clusters. Major capital expenditures
pertained to expansion of vessel fleet
(container, bulk and offshore), Khalifa
Port expansion, Etihad Rail terminal,
built-to-suit assets, warehouses, and
specialised industrial Clusters (Metal
Park, Wholesale Food Hub and Auto
Hub). With planned organic capital
expenditure of around AED 15 billion
expected during 2023-2027 across
Clusters to expand Khalifa Port,
maritime fleet, economic cities and
several other projects, AD Ports Group
anticipates continued growth as it
enhances its unique business ecosystem
by leveraging synergies between the
Economic Cities & Free Zones, Ports,
Logistics, Maritime and Digital Clusters.
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Capital structure

Total equity almost doubled from AED
10,691 million at the end of 2021 to AED
19,635 million at the end of 2022. The
increase mainly came from share
premium realised from listing of the
Group’s shares in ADX and pre-listing
owner’s contribution of equity
investments in Aramex and NMDC apart
from the Net Profit for the year. These
changes to the capital structure have
strengthened the Group’s balance sheet
to support future growth. The Group’s
capital structure as on 31December
2022 comprised 20% debt, including
unsecured bonds under a Euro Medium
Term Note Programme, and an
unsecured senior revolving credit facility
from a syndicate of localand
international banks.

With a Net Debt to EBITDA ratio of 2.0x
at the end of 2022 compared to 2.3xin
2021, the Group maintains a solid
financial position and robust balance
sheet, with significant capital resources
available for both organic and inorganic
growth going forward.

The Group has a well-managed debt
maturity profile with adequate liquidity
lines. The Group’s credit rating remains
investment grade at A+ with Stable
Outlook by Fitch and A+ with Stable
Outlook by S&P Global.

Future outlook

We continue to live in a turbulent period,
with high inflation and interest rates as
well as ongoing geopolitical tensions.
This uncertain backdrop with an
increasing supply of new container
vessels planned for delivery through
2023 and 2024 will likely slow container
trade growthin 2023. This has softened
container shipping market rates in the
main East-West trades but secondary
inter-regional trades remain somewhat
firmer. However, AD Ports Group has a
unigue business model, with defensive
attributes on account of highly
synergistic assets and long-term
contracted revenues, while investing
heavily in both organic and inorganic
growth. We have planned organic
capitalinvestments of more than AED
15 billion over the period 2023 to 2027.
Moreover, our strategic alignment with
the emirate of Abu Dhabi offers
significant business opportunitiesina
region whichis currently experiencing a
buoyant economy, notably on the back
of the high oil prices and strong GDP
forecast and various government
initiatives to diversify the economy. We
anticipate continuing our growth
trajectoryin 2023 and beyondin our
core businesses and for the newly
acquired companies. In the medium
term, we expect to deliver revenue
CAGR of 25-30% and EBITDA CAGR of
20-25% between 2022 and 2027.
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Corporate Governance

Board of
Directors
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H.E. Falah Mohammed
Al Ahbabi
Chairman



Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
Vice-Chairman

Jasim Husain Thabet
Board Member

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

.

Mohamed Ibrahim
AlHammadi
Board member

Najeeba Al Jabri
Board member

_ d - »fu .

15
Mansour Mohamed Captain Mohamed Juma
Abdulgader Al Mulla AlShamisi

Board Member Managing Director and Group CEO

AD Ports Group 67
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Corporate Governance continued

Executive
Management

Captain Mohamed Juma Maitha Al Murar
Al Shamisi Group Chief HR Officer
Managing Director and Group CEO

Captain Ammar Al Shaiba Saif Al Mazrouei
Maritime Cluster Acting CEO Ports Cluster CEO
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Dr Noura Al Dhaheri Abdullah Al Hameli Mr. Farook Al Zeer

Digital Cluster CEO Economic Cities Logistics Cluster Chairman
& Free Zones Cluster CEO

Ross Thompson Emil Pellicer Martin Aarup
Group Chief Strategy Group General Counsel Group Chief Financial Officer
& Growth Officer
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Environmental, Social & Governance

In 2022 AD Ports Group set the development of a new
environment, social & governance (ESG) Group policy in motion. At
its heart, the policy and related framework are designed to drive
the ESG transformation journey of the Group, enabling managing
ESGrisk and counterparties’ obligations across its value chain and
enhancingits ESG performance monitoring and reporting

processes.

Effective policy implementation will
ensure that the Group addresses the
needs and expectations of its key
stakeholders, communicates its ESG
performance and addresses compliance
obligations in line with applicable
regulatory and voluntary ESG
commitments. Senior management
aims to embed ESG principles across the
Group’s operations to ensure this
happens.

Our context

Throughits new ESG framework, the
Group seeks to accelerate its ESG
transformation journey and gain
exposure to globalinvestors by ensuring
that its ESG context reflects regional
andinternational best practices. The
framework also aligns with global
reporting and ESG rating frameworks
and the requirements of regulators,
investors and the UAE’s national
agendas.

Group andrelated subsidiaries ESG
maturity capabilities and assessments
are mapped against the nine dimensions
of astandardised ESG Maturity Model to
ensure the Group’s activities are globally
aligned. The Group Clusters peers for
benchmarks and improvement
opportunities were also identified
accordingly.

AD Ports Group
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ESG corporate capabilities

The Group has established Board roles
that oversee its ESGrisks, related
opportunities and sustainability
initiatives. Furthermore, the Group’s
Corporate Authority - Sustainability, is
mandated to drive its sustainable
development agenda. Under this
framework, the mandate gains
additional support and oversight of ESG
risks by the Group’s Chief Risk and
Compliance team. Both appointments
report directly on the administration of
ESGrisks and execution of the Group’s
ESGinitiatives to the Group Executive
Management. Also, they will monitor
the compliance and integration of the
Group’s Responsible Investment Policy.

The Responsible Investment
Committee will oversee the integration
of ESG criteria into the investment and
acquisition decisions of the Group.
Furthermore, the committee will report
directly to the Executive Committee on
the different initiatives of the
sustainability task forces.

Sustainability champions will support
Clusters’ GRC representatives on the
theme within their Cluster. Additionally,
theme-specific ESG taskforces will have
representatives from each Cluster
under Subsidiary Governance Guideline
requirements. The task force will guide
all the Clusters in engagingininitiatives
and procedures that support the
management of the Group’s ESGrisks
and opportunities. The task force will
also support coordinating the reporting
of different Clusters key focus areas and
pillars.

2022 ESG profile

As part of Group periodic ESG
assessment and reporting protocols,
the mentioned ESG capabilities were
assessed against peers overall ESG
performance, including an overview of
portfolio companies’ ESG performance
criteria, which enable investors to
integrate ESG factorsinto their
investment decisions.

The ESG assessment program has been
developed based oninternationaland
national standards, including the GR,
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) General Requirements
for Disclosure of Sustainability-related
Financial Information, Sustainability
Accounting and Standards Board (SASB)
and the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange
(ADX) ESG Disclosure Guidance. They
are also based on the United Nations
Responsible Investment (PRI) principles.

Asinformed by these internationaland
national standards, the assessment
methodology follows an approach
based on the following formulation:
Commitments > Measures Deployed >
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

Through anin-depth analysis of the
Group’s risks and opportunities that
emerge from environmental, social, and
governance, the comprehensive ESG
ratings report quantifies the Group’s
ESG performance. It has been assessed
based on data from nine Sustainability
Dimensions and 43 ESG issues with over
180 data points.

The Group’s ESG Report for 2022 shows
that it scores higher than the GCC
average, and UAE average and similar
organisations’ average, for its
environmental, social and governance
activities.

In 2022, the Group achieved an overall
ESG score of 75 out of 100. This
compares to a GCC average of 32 (for
the mobility and logistics category) and
a UAE average of 44.
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Performance of key pillars

The Group was ranked sixth and given a
percentile ranking of eighty-threeinits
2022 ESG Report, pointing towards
impressive performance across crucial
ESGissues. The Group outperformed
the average for all organisations in 2022
across multiple areas, including
environmental management, energy
consumption, emissions, responsible
customer relations, health and safety,
corruption prevention, anti-competitive
policies, andits Board of Directors.

Environmental management
and eco design

The Group commits to protecting and
respecting the environment and
avoiding causing adverse environmental
impacts. The ESG 2022 assessment
reports that the Group has formally
committed to environmental
management and eco-designinits
Sustainability Policy. The Group refers
to the existence of this policy in the ESG
datarepositories.

Prevention of pollution

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
reducing pollution, and it refers to the
existence of this policy in the ESG data
repositories. It commits to providing
services that contribute to the
sustainable development of the
environment and deal responsibly with
materialimpacts. The Group aims to
manage oil spills and discharges of
effluents from ports, ships, and
industrial zones.
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Environmental, Social & Governance continued

Biodiversity management

The Group aims to preserve and protect
marine and terrestrial biodiversity. Its
ESGassessments for 2022 report that it
has formally committed to protecting
biodiversity inits Sustainability Policy.
The Group refers to the existence of this
policy in the data per the ESGreporting
scheme.

Water management

The Group aims to manage its water
use. Its ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
reducing water use in its Sustainability
Policy. The Group refers to the existence
of this policy in the ESG data
repositories.

Energy consumption

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that the Group has formally
committed to reducing energy
consumption inits Sustainability Policy.
It refers to the existence of this policy in
the ESG data ESG datarepositories, and
aims to adopt processes, programmes,
and technologies that allow it to track,
monitor, and reduce its energy
consumption effectively. The Group
aims to reduce 3,000 MWh and 3,500
Kilolitres of fuel consumption and
generate 11,000 MWh of clean energy by
solar integration by 2030.

Atmospheric emissions
related to energy
consumption

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed
toreducing atmospheric emissions
related to energy consumptioninits
Sustainability Policy, and it refers to the
existence of this policy in the ESG data
repositories. The Group aims to mitigate
and adapt to climate change and
transition into a low-carbon economy.
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Waste management

The Group aims to minimise the impact
associated with using, extracting,
processing, transporting, maintaining,
and disposing of materials and its ESG
assessments for the 2022 report that it
has formally committed to reducing
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in
its Sustainability Policy. The Group
refers to the existence of this policy in
the ESG data repositories.

Responsible relationships
with customers

The Groupis fully committed to
enhancing the customers’ experience at
all times and across every touchpoint.
lts ESG assessments for 2022 report
that it has made a formal commitment
to ensure responsible customer
relationsinits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. The Group has set
atarget to have a percentage of
complaints closed on time to be 90%.

Supply chain management

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
managing the supply chaininits
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Code of Conduct and Business Ethics.
The Group commits to ensuring that the
Group’s suppliers operate with values
consistent with the company’s
principles.

Health and safety

The Group commits to safeguarding the
health of its employees and ensuring a
healthy working environment, and its
ESGassessments for 2022 report that it
has formally commmitted to addressing
health and safety inits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. The Group aims to
reduce the frequency rate and lost-time
injuries by 5%.




Employee training and
development

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
promoting employee training and
developmentinits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. The Group
commits toimproving employee
welfare, job satisfaction, and career
progression and aims toreach an
average of twenty-one training hours
per employee.

Prevention of human rights
violations

The Group commits to protectingand
furtheringhumanrights across the
company’s value chain. lts ESG
assessments for 2022 report that it has
formally committed to promoting
human rightsinits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy and Human Rights
Policy. The Group adheres to
international standards, including the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and the UN Guiding Principles on
Business and Human Rights.

Equal opportunities

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
promoting equal opportunity inits Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics. The
Group commits to protecting and
promoting equality for all, specifically
amongits employees.

Community initiatives

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has formally committed to
promoting voluntary community
initiativesinits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, and it commmits to
benefiting the communities it operates
within and implementing initiatives and
projects that support the community’s
well-being. The Group aims to achieve
one million beneficiaries by the end of
Q42025.

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Board of Directors

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that the roles of the Chairman
and GCEO are separated, and the
Chairmanis considered independent.

Prevention of corruption

The Group commits to promoting fair
andresponsible business practices,
including fair and transparent
procurement procedures and anti-
corruption practices. Its ESG
assessments for 2022 report that it has
formally committed to preventing
corruptioninits Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics.

Prevention of anti-
competitive practices

The Group has formally committed to
preventing anti-competitive practicesin
its Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
andis committed to fair competition
and dealing.

Nationalisation

The Group’s ESG assessments for 2022
report that it has made a formal
commitment to promoting
nationalisationinits Recruitment Policy,
referring to the policy in the ESG data
repositories. The Group aims to create
job opportunities for the local
community and saw its nationalisation
rateincrease by 1.6% from 66.0% in 2021
to 67.6% in 2022.

AD Ports Group
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022

73



Corporate Governance

His Excellency Falah
Mohammad Al Ahbabi

The Group Governance Framework enables and drives governance-related capabilities to enhance transparency,
accountability, responsibility, and justice. The framework does this by setting a group of corporate governance principles that
the Group and related subsidiaries must adhere to in their day-to-day activities. The principles aim to:

Transparency Transparency means openness and abandonment of obscurity, confidentiality, and
misleading, in addition to making anything verifiable and subject to sound vision;

Accountability The shareholders shall be entitled to hold the Senior Management accountable for its
performance under the law and the governance systems. Furthermore, accountability
ensures the responsibility of the Senior Management before the Board and the Board’s
accountability before the shareholders;

Responsibility It means raising the sense of responsibility of two parts of the Management (the Board and
the Senior Management) and that each member shall act according to a high level of
professional ethics. Furthermore, responsibility acknowledges the legal rights of the
shareholders, and it encourages cooperation between the Group and shareholders
concerning matters such as profit and provision of job opportunities; and

Equality In this regard, it means rights equality between the minor and the major investors. It also
implies equality between local investors and foreign investors.
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Introduction

The Group Corporate Governance Policy sets the
tone at the top, providing direction and guidance
for the Group’s business subsidiaries. The Group’s
corporate governance structure aims to clearly
define the distribution of rights and
responsibilities among different stakeholders and
related subsidiaries, such as the Group Board,
Senior Management, shareholders, and other

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

stakeholders. It establishes the rules and
procedures for decision-making at group-level
corporate affairs and subsidiaries by their
respective boards. This structure is through which
the Group objectives are set and the means of
attaining those objectives and monitoring
performance.

Risk & Compliance Function - GRC Operating Model

Significant Matters and Issues

Board of Directors

Audit and Risk Committee

Management Executive

Committee (ExCom)
Chief Audit Executive

Chief Risk and Compliance Officer

Board Secretary

Board Committees’ Secretaries
Clusters’ Board Secretaries

Cyber Inf tion S it
Corporate Governance & ESG Group Risk & Internal Control yberinformation security Regulations and Compliance
and Data Assurance
4

Governance Risk Compliance (GRC) Functions, GRC Representatives,
Risk Owners and Champions, Compliance Owners and Champions

Direct Reporting ————»

Flow of Information

Administrative ... ... . >
Reporting
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Corporate Governance continued

Group Corporate Governance Overview

Subsidiary governance operating
model

According to The Governance Guide for
Public Joint-Stock Companies Attached
to the SCABoard Chairman’s Decision
No. (3/Chairman) of 2022, which the
Securities and Commodities Authority-
SCAintroduced. Chapter (9): General
Provisions - Subsidiary Group
Governance - Article (81) illustrates the
requirements of the regulations for
establishing a framework for governing
the subsidiaries. The Group meets these
requirements through a framework that
allows for the effective governance of
the Clusters. It also specifies that the
ultimate responsibility of the
governance of the Subsidiaries lies at
the Group level. Depicted below is the
operating model of the Group’s
subsidiary governance structure.

AD Ports Group Corporate
Governance Structure

Remuneration and HR Committee

Clusters Boards and Clusters
Boards Committees

The governing body comprises a
Chairman and members, and each
Cluster shall have a dedicated Cluster
Board. The Cluster Boards are
responsible for providing oversight of
the respective Clusters, including
Clusters Boards Committees, Clusters
Boards Secretaries and Management
Committees. The overall responsibilities
of the Cluster Boardinclude, but are not
limited to, the following:

Providing oversight over the
implementation of the Cluster’s
strategic and operational plans;
Approving the Cluster’s policies;
Reviewing the financial results of the
Clusters;

Evaluating the performance of the
Cluster Management Team; and
Ensuring that all activities, strategies,
budgets and expenditures align with
the Group’s expectations.

Delegation of authorities

The Group’s Delegation of Authority
Matrix has been developed and
articulated per related Group policy. The
policy sets out a comprehensive matrix
of authorities: the Group’s shareholders
and the Board of Directors. These
determine that the Board and the
Executive Management should run the
Group’s administration, strategic,
financial, compliance and operational
affairs. The authorisations indicate to
whom the respective delegations have
been assigned and the financial limits
applicable. Every effortis made to
maintain a clear, consistent delegation
throughout the organisation to expedite
processing.

Board of Directors

Strategy and Investment Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

Board Secretary

Management Executive
Committee (ExCom)

Oversight Functions
Governance,
Internal
Audit
A

Risk and
Compliance

sters

§

Engineering Strate Corporate Ports Maritime Economic Logistics Digital
& Technical and Grogv);h Finance Autr;r,\orit Cluster Cluster Cities & FZ Cluster Cluster
Services Y Board Board Cluster Board Board
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Accordingly, the DOA Policy intends to:

Empower Management to take
decisions and enter transactions
within clear boundaries.

Intended to achieve simplified
internal control, commmunication
effectiveness, and efficiency by
providinga common Delegation of
Authority across the Group.

Ensure the efficient operation of the
Group while maintaining fiscal and
policy integrity through the careful
Delegation of Authority.

Provides the principles of delegation,
including the requirement for review
and monitoring of delegations to
ensure they remain appropriate.

Set procedures to be followed by
relevant persons with regard to
Delegation of Authority.

Ensure that the most appropriate and
best-informed individuals exercise
delegated authority within the Group.

Corporate policies and
procedures

The Group corporate policies and
procedures ensure compliance with all
pertinent regulations from applicable
national and international regulators
and Sector Regulatory Authorities. The
corporate policies and procedures
enable the following capabilities:

Ensure effective and efficient
Management of our business
processes focusing on customers and
continualimprovement by adopting
knowledge and innovation
management principles.

Determine a strategic approach
proactively by overseeing enterprise
risk management portfolios and
articulating risk tolerance levels and
appetite.

Identify and mitigate risks associated
with guality, innovation, business
continuity, occupational safety,
health, information security, asset
management, knowledge
management, compliance and
environmental aspects. Ensure that
measures adopted are cost-effective
and meet the Group compliance
obligations.

Proactively interact and
communicate performance results
with interested parties.

Ensure effective Management of
assets throughout their lifecycle in
asafe, efficient and sustainable
manner to maximise stakeholder
value.

Ensure necessary assets and
resources are available and maintain
employees’ health and well-being.
Establish a compliance function
independent from business
operations with appropriate
authorities,

Unrestricted access andreporting
line to the Management.

Group Environmental,

Social & Governance

The Group Environmental, Social &
Governance (ESG) Policy and related
framework are designed to drive the
Group’s ESG transformation, enabling
the Management of ESG risk and
counterparties’ obligations across the
Group’s value chain and enhancingits
ESG performance monitoring and
reporting processes.

Effective policy implementation will
ensure that the Group addresses the
needs and expectations of its key
stakeholders, communicates group and
subsidiaries’ ESG performance and
addresses compliance obligations in line
with applicable regulatory and
voluntary ESG commitments.

Group Internal Controls Policy
Abu Dhabi Ports Group Internal Control
aims toimplement an effective internal
control environment that supports
Management in adequate, effective, and
efficient operations, reliable information
reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The
objectives of enabling the Internal
Control Framework (ICF) are to
maximise stakeholders’ value and drive
the Group’s mission by ensuring
adequate controls are synergisedin
place by identifying, assessing,
monitoring, and reporting different

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

perspectives of targeted controls
deviations and enabling the
achievement of Abu Dhabi Ports’ Group
strategic objectives.

Dividends

The Group Dividend Policy sets the
principles for the distribution of
Dividends to the shareholders of the
Group in compliance with applicable
laws andregulations and by considering
the long-term growth of the Group and
related subsidiaries. The policy ensures
the protection of the Group’s
shareholder rights. It maintains trust,
andits aims also illustrate the dividend
calculation and ensure fairness of
proportion according to contributionin
the capital while preserving the ultimate
interest of the Group regarding related
financial stability aspects.

Insider trading

The Group Insiders Trading Policy aims
to set out requirements related to
Insiders Trading and support
compliance with relevant laws. The
policy seeks to safeguard the common
interest of the group shareholders by
following strict instructions and
procedures on how to deal with related
aspects, including informing all relevant
persons who are defined as “insiders”
who are apprised of Inside material
Informationin generaland how it
concerns them in their public activities.

AD Ports Group
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Corporate Governance continued

The Group Board of Directors exhibits
the Group’s leadership on behalf of
shareholders and creates a responsible
workplace environment for group
stakeholders. Therefore, all related
Corporate Governance Frameworks set
the ethical tone within the Group Units,
Clusters, and related Subsidiaries and
encourage all Management and
employees to act ethically and follow
applicable laws and regulations and the
Group’s policies, as follows:

Code of Conduct and business

ethics governance

The Group ensures high professional
and ethical standards in all business
activities. The Group implemented a
Code of Conduct and Business Ethics to
achieve the intention. The objective of
the code is to ensure the establishment
of guidelines that govern the ethical
behaviour of all relevant persons. These
include the employee’s internal and
external stakeholders, shareholders and
group industries communities, vendors,
supply chain influencers, and society.

Conflict of interest

In practising their duties, the Board,
Board Committee members and the
Employees should be fully aware of and
clearly understand all applicable laws,
rules, and regulations to comply with
theminall circumstances. Any
advantages that may be presented to
the Employees, opportunities for
monetary and non-monetary benefits,
and the standard compensation
arrangement paid by the Group should
align with the Conflict-of-Interest
Policy.

Whistleblowing

The Group has established a
“Whistleblowing Policy,” which sets and
defines procedures that allow

Employees of the Group to disclose their

concerns and protects Employees who
report problems or concerns, with

AD Ports Group
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honest intentions, from any form of
retaliation or retribution. Any form of
retaliation against any Employee who
reports an actual or perceived problem
or concerns with honourable intentions
is strictly prohibited. Any Employee who
commits or condones any form of
retaliation shall be subject to the
Group’s disciplinary procedures.

Dealings or transactions with
related parties

The Group has defined a policy for
Related Party transactions. The
mentioned policy aims to govern
dealings or transactions with related
parties (collectively “Related Party
Transactions”). It shall establish
principles of conduct that the Group
must adopt to guarantee that
transactions with Related Parties are
managed appropriately. It further lays
down the procedural rules to be
followed for the approval of Related

Party Transactions entered into by the
Group. These procedures are designed
to provide more significant safeguards
for minority shareholders and other
stakeholders by preventing any abuse
that might arise from Related Party
Transactions, including potential
conflict of interests resulting in an
improper or illegal benefit to a Related
Party. The policy binds and applies to
Relevant Persons.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption
(ABAC)

The Group will investigate all actual or
suspected bribery, corruption, or fraud
and take appropriate disciplinary
actions. In contrast, the Group takes a
zero-tolerance approach to bribery,
corruption, or fraud. To mitigate all
relatedrisks proactively, the Group and
the Board view any breach of these
codes with the utmost gravity by
enacting some specific policies.




Board Formation

Board nomination

The Group Board has established the
Board Nomination Policy for the 2022
termin cooperation with the
Remuneration and Human Resources
Committee. The mentioned policy
details the steps taken when a
candidate for the Board is nominated,
selected, elected, andre-elected.
Candidates for election or
reappointment to the Board of
Directors are to be chosen based on
merit and objective criteria, as
acknowledged by Board Remuneration
Policy, to best serve the Group’s and its
stakeholders’ interests.

Boardinduction

The Board Nomination Policy has set up
aBoard onboarding procedure. All
newly appointed Board Members and
Board Advisors are given a bespoke,
tailoredinduction session about the
Group and its related subsidiaries and
business sectors and other topics that
help them do their jobs. Mentioned
sessions shedin particular attention on
the following aspects:

Article of Association; Executive
Committees Bios”;

Organisational Structure and
Corporate governance, risk and
compliance policies, procedures and
guidelines; Annual Report and
accounts for 2020 and 2027;

Powers reserved to the Board and
authorities delegated by the Board to
GCEO and others; Code Of Business
Conduct & Business Ethics
Declarations; and

Board and Board committee charters;
Group Short term and long-term
strategies and budget for the current
year.

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Board diversity

The Group’s Board of Directors is
elected by the General Assembly for
three years or the remainder thereof, in
line with the Group’s Articles of
Association. Most of the Group’s
directors are non-executive,
independent directors, within the
meaning of Resolution No. (3/R.M) of
2020 of the SCA (Governance Guide).

With the approval of the amendment of
the Articles of Association of the Group
in January 2022, The Group’s Board
membership increased from5to7
members, including one female
member to support SCA’s efforts to
increase female representation on
corporate boards. Work - such as
training and motivational programs —is
being undertaken to encourage
leadership nomination of women within
the Group and its subsidiaries.

Believing in the essential role that
women play, the Group will continue to
urge internal units and subsidiaries to
nominate women for their corporate
boards as a general policy in line with
the bestinternational practices. This
will support the country’s national
indicators and enrich lives by supporting
diversity through group ESG strategies.

The Group ultimately aims to
implement decisions and initiatives that
ensure Workforce Diversity &
Engagement and provide all possible
support toits Workforce Gender
Balance Team. It will always be keen on
taking its responsibilities seriously to
enhance women’s status, support their
role in society, and provide an enriching
experience in women empowerment at
the financial level, hoping that this
Experience willbe a model to emulate.
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Corporate Governance continued

Related parties transactions

In accordance with the Governance
Guide Article No. 34 and International
Accounting Standards 24: Related Party
Disclosures, the Group has conducted
business with corporations and entities
that meet the definition of a related
party. The nature of these transactions,
however, is consistent with the Group’s
ordinary course of business, as further
describedin note 29 of the Group’s
audited annual financial statements for
the year ending December 31,2022.

Management Committees

To guarantee good governance,
mitigate associated risks, keep decision-
making under control, and get the
necessary assurance from pertinent
functions, the Group CEO and Managing
Director have established Management
Committees. The below-listed
mManagement committees were set up
to better advise and assure
shareholders and provide a platform for
receiving and discussing operational
updates.
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Management Executive Committee
The Executive Management
Committee’s primary roles and
responsibilities focus on decision-
making for the group andrelated
subsidiaries’ strategies, business
planning, budgeting, financial reporting
and Group Risk and Internal Control
Management. It determines the Group’s
activities by putting forth the goals,
objectives and targets in concrete terms
and formulating the strategies for
achieving them. It also putsin place the
infrastructure for the Group’s success
by establishing the following
mechanisms:

Purposeful legal and organisational
structures that work effectively and
efficiently.

Functional planning, control, and
management risk that assess risks on
anintegrated cross-functional
approach.

Ensure that Digital strategies are
defined and aligned with the business
goals of the Group; and

Succession planning formalises
identifying, training and selecting
successors for critical positions in the
Group.

From an Authority perspective, the
Executive Management Committee
charter shall have no independent
authority to act on the Group’s behalf
and be regarded as the competent
authority. Allauthorities afforded to
individuals as per the Delegation of
Authority (DoA) shall remain.
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Tender Board Committee

Tender Board is a Management
committee whose primary role and
responsibility is to support the Group
functions with the authority to approve
commitments and other decisions on
the procurement of goods and services
in accordance with the approved DoA.
The Committee shall review and
endorse recommendations before the
Competent authority approves them.
Therole of the Tender Board is to ensure
the following:

To maintainintegrity and exercise
control over the procurement
process.

To ensure compliance with the
Procurement Policy and
Procurement Procedures Manual; and
Review and advise on other matters
required by the DoA or the
Competent authority. A Competent
Authority is the position identified in
the DoA, the Procurement Policy or
the Procurement Procedures Manual
as having the authority to approve a
procurement-related matter.

Strategy & Investment Committee
TheInvestment committee’s primary
role andresponsibilities look after
merger and acquisition proposals,
greenfield/brownfield project finance,
investment opportunities, asset sales,
and funding for capital expenditures or
abandonment. The Committee has a
responsibility to oversee Executive

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Committee approvals for activities
under the Groups’ Delegation of
Authority, including:

Oversight of the Corporate Strategy
five (5) year business plan, annual
budget and the corporate scorecard
scoping the long-term business
strategy and any subsequent material
changes to the business strategy.
Growth strategies - including
expansion into international markets,
any material changes in strategic
direction and plans for diversification
- amongst any other changes to the
Group’s growth strategy.

The strategic rationale for the
investment in companies, the
acquisition or construction of
material assets, the findings of due
diligence reports, negotiations of the
investment terms, and the binding
offer(s) to be made.

Ensure the policies underlying the
financial funding plan of the Group
safeguardits adequacy and
soundnessin providing for its
operational and capitalrequirements.
Furthermore, recommend to the
Board any necessary changes to the
Group’s capital and debt structure;
articulate Policies for hedging of
currency and interest rate risk.

The Board must approve all material
financing (including treasury
activities, project financing and
refinancing).

Any decision by Management
Committees related to the scope
above will require the subsequent
approval of the competent authority
as per the DoA before being
implemented.
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Risk and Compliance

AD Ports Group operates a Group Risk
and Compliance framework that
promotes robust governance, risk, and
compliance (GRC) roles and
responsibilities. Underpinning the
framework s a strategy that enables
effective oversight of an evolving
corporate culture and manages and
embraces the idea of turning risks into
opportunities. By identifying ways of
turning potential risks into new
opportunities, the Group sets out to
create value for the Group’s operations,
strategic objectives, initiatives, and
related programs.

Furthermore, GRCis responsible for
monitoring compliance with applicable
policies, procedures, laws, and
regulations; and for developing and
ensuring the implementation of
controls applied across the Group and
allits subsidiaries. The department’s
work enables management to do the
following:

Develop and maintain Group
Corporate Governance Controls such
as frameworks, policies, processes,
operating models, andrelated
mechanisms.

Coordinate GRC activities across the
Group’s Clusters and related
subsidiaries and maintenance of the
internal key control framework.

Establish and cormmunicate the
Group’s enterprise risk management
Risk & Compliance profiles,
objectives, and direction, helping
management to integrate them into
the strategy development process.
ldentify, develop, and periodically
update a comprehensive list of all
compliance obligations and integrate
theminto the Group’s policies and
procedures.

GRC operates within a continual
improvement and enhancement
approach aligned with the Group
Excellence Maturity Model. This dictates
that the department performs a
periodic assessment (semi-annual) of
the current state of the Group’s
Compliance, Governance, and Risk &
Compliance capabilities, including
frameworks and programs.
Furthermore, the GRC indices outline
the significant elements crucial to
preventing, detecting, and responding
to governance, risk, and compliance
challenges.

Risk & Compliance
Management Framework
The Group’s Risk & Compliance Policies
defines the Group’s overall Risk &
Compliance governance practices of
Abu Dhabi Ports Group and forms the
foundation for relevant stakeholders to
manage day-to-day decision-making
and risk management capabilities.

The following statements depict the objectives
of the Group’s Risk & Compliance function:

Implement a comprehensive
Risk & Compliance Framework.

Establish clear accountability

and ownership of risk & compliance
obligations at an enterprise level.

Instilincreased confidencein the
Group’s corporate governance
and its ability to deliver services.
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Enhance and support the effective
achievement of the Group’s objectives
through appropriaterisk mitigation.

Provide all employees with an
understanding of the Group’s position
onrisk-taking and managing risk while
considering the interests of allits
stakeholders and shareholders.




At the same time, its missionis to
ensure, with the support of the Risk &
Compliance Framework, that an
effective risk management practice isin
place toidentify, assess, treat, monitor,
andreport different types of risks,
enabling the achievement of AD Ports
Group’s strategic objectives.

Key achievements and key
results 2022

During a landmark year of major
acquisitions and a listing on the Abu
Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX), the
Group’s risk management framework,
particularly its GRC capabilities, evolved
significantly in 2022. In particular, GRC
worked to identify and mitigate all
related Competitive Behaviour and
Corporate Governance Culture Risks
and ensured that all associated controls
were defined and fit for purpose.

AD Ports Group IPO/GRC capacities
Supported the Group’s IPO/GRC by
devising and implementing Group-wide
corporate governance, risk, and
compliance frameworkin line with SCA
standards. Circa 30 policies,
frammeworks, and related SoPs.

AML/sanctions screening

Enacted the Group’s Sanctions/KYC
Screening Policy. During the year 2022,
we saw around ~4000 due diligence
transactions take place at the Group
level.

Declaration of interest (COI/COBC)
The Group enacted a series of COl/
COBC (code of business conduct)
policies and initiatives in 2022, reaching
95% of business units, 77% of Clusters,
and 86% of the total workforce,
including blue-collar employees.

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

GRCPlatform (Muruna)

Successfully implemented a GRC
Platform (Muruna) to automate risk,
compliance, BCM (business continuity
management), audit, and internal
controls processes along with reporting
mechanisms.

GRC capability maturity assessment
GRC capability maturity assessment
took place during 2022 across corporate
governance, enterprise risk, and
compliance. In addition, an Risk &
Compliance (enterprise risk
management) culture survey was
carried out to gain a more granular
appreciation of employee
understanding.

1SO 37201:2021 Compliance
Management System

In 2022 the Group attained attestation
for Compliance Management Systems
against ISO 37301:2021 - the “Provision
of compliance management assurance
services for corporate units and Clusters
of AD Ports Group.”

1ISO 37001:2016 Anti-Bribery
Management System

In 2022 the Group attained attestation
for Anti-Bribery Management Systems
Against ISO 37001:2016 - the “Provision
of Anti-Bribery control assurance
services for corporate units and Clusters
of AD Ports Group.”
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Risk and Compliance continued

Additionally, a series of mitigation
strategies developedin 2022 for
anti-corruption, anti-competitive
behaviour, and business conduct
principles and standards. Amongst the
many Group-wide initiatives and
programs in 2022 core objectives, as
follows:

Increase process efficiency
and effectiveness

With a view to increasing the overall
efficiency and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk and compliance capabilities,
aroot-and-branch analysis and reform
agenda took place in 2022. This looked
at AML and sanctions policies at the
Group and Clusters Levels, fraud risk
control policies, frameworks, risk
registers,and a comprehensive
compliance risk assessment.

During a year that saw the Group move
through an extraordinary period of
change and development, a large
number of programs were completed,
including:

Implemented Group and Cluster-level
anti-money laundering (AML),
counter-terrorism funding (CTF), and
sanctions policies.

Implemented a new ‘Fraud Risk
Management (FRM) Control Policy
Framework’ along with
corresponding fraudrisk registers and
related mitigation measures.
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Develop andimplement a compliance
monitoring system across the Group
and its Clusters, including residual
state of compliance risk assessment
referenced to the Group regulatory
compendium and subsidiaries’
activities obligations.

Develop a Group ESG policies final
draft andrelated framework and ESG
strategy for ARC endorsement, which
were already endorsed by the group
management executive committee.
Maintain, oversight, and enhance
existing governance policies and
related mechanisms, including the
declaration of interest and COBC
automation, whistleblowing, anti-
bribery, and anti-corruption, among
others,

Established a whistleblowing “Reach
Out” platformin August 2022 across
the Group, its Clusters, and third
parties.

Adopted a third-party / vendor risk
and due diligence capability utilizing
World Check “Refinitiv” platform.
Facilitated the Group’s corporate
governance policies in line with SCA
standards - circa 30 policies,
frameworks, and related SoPs.
Enabled an ‘Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting’ (ICOFR) exercise
and facilitated an Internal Control
Framework Policy (ICF) for ARC
endorsement, which was already
endorsed by the group management
executive committee.

Risks identified

To support further compliance,
awareness, and relevance of GRC
policies, an annual enterprise risk-
controlassessment exercise was
performed across Clusters and
corporate unitsin 2022. GRC also
carried out its annual enterprise
obligation register review and update
exercise across all Clusters and
corporate units.

The Group Enterprise Risk Management
profile was refreshed and verified, and
the residual risk rate was assessed
against facts related to group
evolvement. The review exercise
includes the results of Corporate Level
(Strategic) - 57; Cross Departmental
Level (Tactical) - 248; and
Departmental Level (Transactional) —
864.

The 2022 GRC compliance risk
assessment exercise added around 850
new compliance risks, including their
controls andresidual status. It also
completed a fraud control policy risk
assessment exercise that identified a
total of 93 risks in Corporate (46) and
Clusters (47). Furthermore, the 2022
‘Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting’ risk assessment identified a
total of 186 risks across 20 Key
mandates across Corporate and
Clusters.

The ESGregulatory landscape
identification procedure also identified
around 112 reporting obligations for the
Group. Looking ahead to 2023, a more
defined regulatory landscape will
enable to Group toinitiate an ESG and
Climate Risk Identification Exercise.
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Risk and Compliance continued

Compliance accreditations

In 2022, as in previous years, the Group
worked to entrench and enhance its
capabilities and reporting readiness
through the attainment of globally
recognised SO standards and
guidelines. In 2022 they included:

ISO 31000:2018, Risk management

— Guidelines — Accreditations
Granted Successfully by Lloyd’s
Register, with No Major observations/
nonconformities.

ISO 37301:2021 — Compliance
Management Framework
Certification - Accreditations Granted
Successfully by Lloyd’s Register, with
No Major observations/
nonconformities.

ISO 37001:2018 - AntiBribery
Management — Accreditations
Granted Successfully by Lloyd’s
Register, with No Major observations/
nonconformities.

ISO 37301:2021 — Compliance
Management Framework.

ISO 37000 - Governance of
Organisations Gap Assessments
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Enhance customer
satisfaction

With customer satisfaction, a core
factor in sustainability, the Group’s risk
and compliance department worked
across the business andits Clusters to
integrate a series of new customer-
related corporate governance
frameworksin 2022.

In terms of lines of communication, all
governance, risk management and
compliance, ESG, and ICOFR-related
queries were reported to the
Management Executive Committee and
the Management Executive Leadership
onamonthly basis in 2022. In addition,
regulator queries were addressedin a
timely fashion, including all reporting
requirements.

Enhance the Group
Corporate Culture

To ensure that the Group’s innovation
culture is maintained and enriched, all
employees and key stakeholders receive
periodic training and guidance on GRC
frameworks and culture. In 2022, more
than 50 strategic risk assessment
sessions were conducted, while a series
of specialist training sessions were held
on multiple GRC aspects. They include
sessions on compliance, fraud, AML,
sanctions, and other related elements.
In 2022 more than 300 stakeholders
from across the entire Group
participated.

Specialist training sessions

300+

stakeholders participated in 2022

Maintain our
understanding of key
stakeholders

As part of this core objective, Risk
and Compliance assumed a key
stakeholders relations role for the
Group, resulting in headcount cost
savings and synergies that served to
support the ADX listing process.

To further understand the impact of
its activities on key stakeholders, the
Risk and Compliance team carried
out a comprehensive fraud risk
assessment, a compliance risk
assessment, areview of the AML/
Sanctions regulatory landscape, and
an assessment of Cluster
governance frameworks.

Support Clusters and subsidiaries
developing GRC function
capabilities according to Group
Subsidiaries Governance
Guidelines in order to mitigate
critical risks and monitor
materialized risks.

Oversight market and trading
risks such as AML, Sanctions KYC,
and 3rd party Risk Management
related measures taken by the
different concerned stakeholders
at both the group level and
Cluster-level.

Develop Group Fraud Control Risk
Policy.

Document additional policies and
procedures required under SCA
prior to listing.

Establish Group Internal control
framework, including financial
reporting controls, compliance,
and operationalin line with ADAA
Resolutionno. 1.




Risk horizon in the medium

and long term

The Group’s medium to long-term risk
outlook comprises five dynamics that
are always evolving and, as such,
represent an ever-changing and
increasingly complexrisk landscape.
They include the ongoing nature of
regulatory change, macroeconomics
and global economic uncertainties,
supply chain and third-party exposure,
and disruptive technologies.

Business transformations
paradigm shift risk

The newly introduced business
transformation model will enable
corporate group units, Clusters, and
related subsidiaries to migrate from
“active management” into “strategic
management” capabilities. Such a

Macro-economic developments
growthrate

International exposure and uncertainty
around the timing of regular
macroeconomic cycles create volatility
in the markets in which Group
subsidiaries operate. The mentioned
concern highlights the challenges and
uncertainties the business model might
faceina dynamic and potentially
volatile economic and political
environment.

Supply chain, outsourcing and
vendors

Group industries value chains corporate
capabilities shall ensure effectiveness
and readiness, including 3rd and 4th
parties’ vendors. Mentioned concern
examines subsidiaries’ capabilities,
including third parties.

Environmental,
Social &
Governance

Disruptive technologies

Group industries are in an era of
innovative business models fuelled by
disruptive technologies. This concern
examines whether Group Clusters
industries are prepared to adapt to and
capitalise on disruption.

paradigm shift might impact corporate
goals alignment and challenge them to
execute and realise the strategic

milestones seamlessly, including delays
ininitiatives execution and deliverables.

AD Ports Group
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Risk and Compliance continued

effectiveness and
readiness, including 2nd
and 3rd parties. As well as
business partnerships and
vendors.

This issue examines
subsidiaries’ capabilities,
including third parties.

readiness, including 2nd and
3rd parties, by prioritising
activities during
emergencies or crises.

Critical Business Impact of
processes, services, and
agreements. The capabilities
enable the identification of
group business ecosystems.
At the same time,
contingency plans are ready,
effective, cascaded to
Suppliers / Providers, and
tested periodically.

Risk name Description Mitigation strategies Risk level Risk rate
(Increasing/ (current)
Stable / - further
Decreasing actions
comparedtothe
previous year)
1-Regulatory Group Clusters have a AD Ports Group Compliance  Stable High Risk
Change & broad spectrum exposing Management capabilities =
Compliance enough impact of new enable scan and defining all Continuous
regulatory requirements relevant statutory, Reporting
to seize the competitive regulatory, and contractual
market opportunities reguirements surrounding
arising from regulatory group business ecosystems.
CEIgE: The mentioned capabilities
This issue examines support workstreams act
whether boards feel proactively by due diligence
confident receiving exercises undertakenin
complete, timely, coordination with the
transparent, accurate, and regulations governing the
relevant information for new investment decision and
group and Cluster assessing the possible
compliance strategies. liabilities/ financial losses.
Moreover, the framework
structured periodic reports
are developed to include all
legalissues such as expired
contracts, contractual
obligations did not provide
such as performance bonds,
or non-compliance with
government regulations
2-Supply-Chain  To drive AD Ports AD Ports Group establishes Increasing High Risk
Business Industries Chains resilience capabilities that =
Disruption successfully, corporate enable critical suppliers to Continuous
capabilities shall ensure ensure effectiveness and Reporting

AD Ports Group
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Environmental,

Social &
Governance
Risk name Description Mitigation strategies Risk level Risk rate
(Increasing/ (current)
Stable / - further
Decreasing actions
comparedtothe
previous year)
3-Talent The Growing gigeconomy, Critical position on Increasing Moderate
Management  dynamic labour organisational structure Risk —
conditions, and the listed. AD Ports Group BoD Continuous
continuing impact of adopt “Group Strategic Reporting
digitalisation are Succession Planning” and HR
redefininghow work gets  Strategy. At the same time,
done. Competencies support
Thisi : talent management
is issue examines o
T activities and embrace
organisations’ challenges :
- o o retention.
in identifying, acquiring,
upskilling and retaining
the right talent to achieve
their objectives.
4-Sustainable  The growth of Group Level ESG Operating Increasing High Risk
Investment environmental, social,and Model enables group =
(ESG) governance awareness workstreams to anticipate all Continuous
increasingly influences AD  related ESG obligatory Reporting
Ports group decision- universe factors and utilise
making. controls compliance with all
This issue examines AD ;egulatory obligatipns across
) - Clusters, vertical industries,
Ports Group’s abilities to and corporate units
establish strategies to ’
address long-term
sustainability issues.
5-Cyber- The growing Data leakage prevention Decreasing High Risk
Attack sophistication and variety  strategic capabilities arein =
Incidents of cyberattack incidents place; moreover, information Continuous
continue to hive easily on  security culture embracing Reporting
organisations’ brandsand programin progress and
reputations, often several strategic milestones
resulting in significant aligned with forecasted
financialimpacts. growth allocated.
This issue examines
whether organisations are
sufficiently prepared to
manage cyber threats
that could cause
disruption and
reputational harm.
AD Ports Group
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Report of the Board of Directors
For the year ended 31December 2022

The Directors have the pleasure of submitting their report, together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
Abu Dhabi Ports Company PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, referred to as, the “Group”) for the year ended
31December 2022.

Results for the year
During the year, the Group earned revenue of AED 5,497,836 thousand (2021: AED 3,909,663 thousand) and net profit for the
year amounted to AED 1,284,413 thousand (2021: AED 853,344 thousand).

Dividends

In line with the vision of the Company and its future growth plans, the Company has adopted a business plan to develop and
expand its operations, which requires sufficient cash liquidity and increasing cash reserves to support and achieve the desired
growth plan. Therefore, the Directors recommends not to distribute any dividends to the shareholders for the financial year
ending 31 December 2022.

Accounts
The Directors have reviewed and approved the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31December 2022.

Directors
The Directors who served during the year and as of the reporting date is as follows:

H.E. Falah Mohammed Falah Jaber Al Ahbabi Chairman

Mr. Khalifa Sultan Hazim Al Suwaidi Vice Chairman

Mohamed Juma Al Shamisi Managing Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Jasim Husain Thabet Member

Mr. Mansour Mohamed Abdulgader Mohamed Al Mulla Member

Ms. Najeeba Hassan Mubarak Khudaim Al Jabri Member

Mr. Mohamed Ibrahim AlHammadi Member

Release

The Directorsrelease the external auditor and management from any liability in connection with their duties for the year
ended 31December 2022.

Auditor
The Directors propose the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) as the external auditor of the Group for the financial
year ending 31 December 2023.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman
Abu Dhabi, UAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Abu Dhabi Ports Company PJSC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Abu DhabiPorts Company PJSC (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31December 2022
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Codes of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Audit Committee
but they are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters that were identified by our audit and that were discussed with the
Audit Committee. On the following pages, we have described the key audit matters we identified and have included a
summiary of the audit procedures we performed to address those matters.

The key audit matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters are stated
below:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressedin our audit

Revenuerecognition

Revenueisrecognised from various streams ~ Our audit procedures included the following:

andsources suchas lease, port operations,  ynderstanding the significant revenue processes and identifying the relevant
‘log|st|c.operat|<.3n's, concessions, andmarine,  controls, IT systems, interfaces and reports, including performance of end-to-
industrialand digital services. end walkthroughs of the revenue processes.

The Groupreported revenue of AED 5,498 Evaluating the design and implementation and testing the operating

million (2021: AED 3,910 million). Refer tonote  effectiveness of relevant controls related to the revenue processes.
3 to the consolidated financial statements

for the accounting policy and note 24 for the
revenue disclosure.

Understanding the control environment and testing the general T controls
over the main systems and applications involved in the revenue recording
process. In doing so, we involved our IT specialists to assist in the audit of IT
The Group focuses onrevenue asakey system controls and testing of information produced by the entities’ IT

performance measure andas a driver for systems surrounding the revenue processes.
growthand expansion. Revenue is material and

important to determine the Group profitability. Assessing the Group’s accounting policy against the requirements of IFRSs and

the compliance of revenue recognized therewith.
Due to the magnitude of the amount,

revenue streams, high volume of
transactions and the susceptibility of such
revenues to overstatement due to fraud risk,
we assessed revenue recognition as a Key
audit matter.

Performing the following substantive audit procedures:

- Tests of details on a sample basis by inspecting relevant supporting
documents to determine the occurrence and accuracy of the recorded
revenue transactions during the year
Tests of details on a sample of transactions before and after the year end to

determine that revenue has beenrecognizedin the correct reporting period.
For more information related to revenue,

refer to note 3 for accounting policy on
revenue recognition and note 24 in the
consolidated financial statements.

Assessing the overall presentation, structure and content of revenue related
disclosures in notes 29 to the consolidated financial statements to determine if
they were in compliance with the requirements of IFRSs.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
To the shareholders of Abu Dhabi Ports Company PJSC

Key Audit Matters continued

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Business combination

During the year, the Group enteredinto a As part of our audit procedures in respect of the business combinations, we

number of business acquisition transactions  have:

as disclosedin note 34. As aresult of those - Assessed the design and implementation of controls over the accounting for

transactions, the Group recorded goodwill these transactions;

andintangibles of AED 290 millionand AED -+ Assessed whether management’s assumptions in relation to the accounting

486 million, respectively. for these transactions are in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3; and

These transactions have been accounted for ° Agreed the fair values of the assets and liabilities determined by

in accordance with IFRS 3 Business management to the amounts presented in the consolidated financial

Combinations. Management have applied statements;

the acquisition method in accounting for the  * ASpartof our audit procedures in respect of the purchase price allocation,

abovementioned acquisitions which requires ~ We have:

the following: - assessed the completeness and accuracy of the assets acquired and
identifying the acquirer; liabilities assumed in the purchase price allocation;
determining the acquisition date; - assessed the skills, gualification, objectivity and independence of the
recognizing and measuring the identifiable external valuation specialists engaged by the Group and reviewed their
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and terms with the Group to determine if it was sufficient for audit purposes.
non-controlling interest in the acquiree; - evaluated, with involvement of our internal experts, the methodologies
and and significant inputs used by the Group including the identification of
recognizing and measuring goodwill or a intangible assets and the determination of the useful lives of the identified
gain from a bargain purchase. intangible assets;

- assessed, with involvement of our internal experts, the fair values of a
sample of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed,;

- analysed the provisional fair value adjustments recognized by
management and evaluated whether the adjustments made were in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3; and

- assessed, with involvement of our internal experts, the provisional
goodwill recognised by management and evaluated whether it was
accounted for in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3;

Independent external valuation specialists
were engaged by the Group to perform the
provisional purchase price allocation exercise
which includes determination of provisional
fair valuation of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, and identification and valuation of
the intangible assets.

We have identified the acquisition of these
businesses as a key audit matter due to the
size of the transactions and the inherent
complexities associated with business
combinations, particularly the judgements
applled and estimates made in the:
allocation of the provisional purchase price
to theidentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed;
the identification and measurement of
intangible assets and the determination of
usefullives assigned to the identified
intangible assets; and
adjustments made to align accounting
policies of these businesses with those of
the Group.

Assessed the disclosure in the consolidated financial statements relating to
this matter against the requirements of IFRSs.

Refer to note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements for more details relating to this
matter.
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Other Information

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Report of Board of
Directors, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Group’s Annual Report, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to reportin this regard.

When we will read the Group’s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will be required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and consider whether areportable irregularity exists in terms
of the auditing standards, which must be reported.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs and the applicable provisions of the articles of association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 202],
and for suchinternal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AD Ports Group o5
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Independent Auditor’s Report continued
To the shareholders of Abu Dhabi Ports Company PJSC

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

- Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attentionin our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation; and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse conseqguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that for the year ended 31 December 2022:

We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2027,

The Group has maintained proper books of account;

The financialinformation included in the Report of Board of Directors is consistent with the books of account of the Group;
Note 3reflects the Group’s investment in shares during the financial year ended 31 December 2022;

Note 29 reflects the disclosures relating to material related party transactions, balances, and the terms under which they
were conducted;

Note 26 reflects the disclosures relating to social contributions made during the year; and

Based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 any of the applicable provisions of the
UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 or, its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially affect its
activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2022.

Further, as required by the Resolution of the Chairman of the Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority No. 88 of 2021 pertaining to
Auditing the Financial Statements of Subject Entities, we report that based on the procedures performed and information
provided to us, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Company has not complied, in all material
respects, with any of the provisions of the following laws, regulations and circulars as applicable, which would materially affect
its activities or the financial statements as at 31 December 2022:

Law No. (1) of 2017 concerning the Financial System of the Government of Abu Dhabiand instructions issued by the
Department of Finance pertaining to the preparation and implementation of the annual budget of the Subject Entities;
Law of establishment; and

Relevant provisions of the applicable laws, resolutions and circulars that have animpact on Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E))

Rama Padmanabha Acharya
Registration No. 701

16 March 2022

Abu Dhabi

United Arab Emirates

AD Ports Group o7
Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

As at 31December 2022
2022 2021

Notes AED’000 AED’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 21,789,636 17152182
Investment properties 6 4,481935 3,637,855
Intangible assets and goodwill 7 946,902 224,043
Right-of-use assets 8 799,838 635,409
Investment in joint ventures 9 612,241 455,493
Investment in associate 10 1,280,325 -
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income n 2,078,388 58,788
Trade and other receivables 12 213,729 1,778,980
Prepayments and advances 13 48,600 45 600
Total non-current assets 34,151,594 23,988,350
Current assets
Inventories 14 50,772 25,260
Trade and other receivables 12 2,922,064 2,395,316
Prepayments and advances 13 596,739 451,308
Property held for sale 35 - 237,000
Cash and bank balances 15 790,822 1,051,274
Total current assets 4,360,397 4,160,158
Total assets 38,511,991 28,148,508
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 16 5090,000 3,840,000
Share premium 16 2,750,000 -
Statutoryreserve 17 504,696 379,861
Assets distribution reserve 17 (22,063) (22,063)
Cash flow hedge reserve 17 (41154) (97,039)
Investment revaluation reserve 1 928,942 -
Foreign currency translation reserve (21,786) -
Merger reserve 17 1,319,288 1,319,288
Retained earnings 4,272,152 3,148,645
Owner’s contribution 29 4,467,655 2,069,710
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 19,247,730 10,638,402
Non-controlling interests 36 387,403 52,546

Total equity

19,635,133 10,690,948

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
Notes AED’000 AED’000
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred government grants 18 6,561,872 6,270,793
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 19 157,308 120,01

Payable to the project companies
Lease liabilities

Bond payable

Bank borrowing

Trade and other payables

20 2,139,765 2,150,564
8 845,078 713,460
21 3,589954 3,581,021

22 80,795

23 506,288 343,753

Totalnon-current liabilities

13,881,060 13,179,602

Current liabilities

Deferred government grants
Payable to the project companies
Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables

18 279,740 131,919
20 278,681 273,508
8 70,249 91,809

22 1,395,698 1146132
23 2971430 2,634,590

Total current liabilities

4,995,798 4,277,958

Total liabilities

18,876,858 17,457,560

Total equity and liabilities

38,511,991 28,148,508

To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Group as of, and for, the periods presented therein.

H.E Falah Mohammed Falah Mohamed Juma Al Shamisi

Jaber Al Ahbabi

Chairman Managing Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Martin Aarup

Group Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31December 2022

2022 2021

Notes AED’000 AED’000

Revenue 24 5,497,836  3909,663
Direct costs 25 (2,865,409) (2,010,672)
Gross profit 2,632,427 1,898,991
Generaland administrative expenses 26.1 (984,516) (682,797)

Impairment losses (including reversals of impairment losses) on financial assets

and unbilled lease receivables 12 (142,313) (20,508)
Sellingand marketing expenses (82,975) (66,057)
Share of results fromjoint ventures 9 127,929 29,248
Share of profit from associate 10 36,913 -
(Impairment and write off)/reversal of impairment on investment properties 6 (4,553) 25,813
Finance costs 27 (394,108) (341,844)
Finance income 15116 627
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale 35 73,000 -
Otherincome, net 28 9,507 9,871
Profit before tax 1,286,427 853,344
Income tax expense on foreign operations (2,014) -
Net profit for the year 1,284,413 853,344
Attributable to the owners of the Company 1,248,342 845,694
Non-controlling interests 36 36,071 7,650
1,284,413 853,344

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED) 30 0.25 0.22
Adjusted EBITDA 31 2,175,091 1,600,772

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial

Statements
Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31December 2022
2022 2021
Note AED’000 AED’000
Profit for the year 1,284,413 853,344
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss:
Fair value gain on financial asset designated at FVTOCI 1l 928,950 -
Fair value gain on financial asset designated at FVTOCI - share of equity
accountedinvestees 10 (8) -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
Share of equity accounted investees:
Net fair value gain/(loss) on hedging instruments entered into for cash flow
hedges - equity accounted joint venture 9 55,885 37136
Share of equity accounted associate 10 (21,390) -
Loss on translation of foreign operations (567) -
Total other comprehensive income 962,870 37,136
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,247,283 890,480
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 2,211,383 882,830
Non-controlling interests 36 35,900 7,650

2,247,283 890,480

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31December 2022

Assets
Share Share Statutory distribution
capital premium reserve reserve
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Balance at1January 2021 (restated) 3,840,000 - 295,292 (22,063)
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Transferred to statutory reserve - - 84,569 -
Owner’s contribution (note 29) - - - -
Additional shareholder’s contribution in a subsidiary (note 36) - - - -
Dividend declared to non-controlling interests in a subsidiary (note 36) - - - -
Balance at1January 2022 3,840,000 - 379,861 (22,063)
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Transferred to statutory reserve - - 124,835 -
Owner’s contribution (note 29) - - - -
Dividend declared to non-controlling interests in a subsidiary (note 36) - - - -
New shares issued (note 16) 1,250,000 2,750,000 - -
Acquisition of new subsidiaries (note 34) - - - -
Balance at 31December 2022 5,090,000 2,750,000 504,696 (22,063)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial

Statements
Foreign Equity
Investment currency attributable Non-
Cash flow revaluation translation Merger Retained Owner’s to owners of controlling
hedgereserve reserve reserve reserve earnings contribution the Company interests Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
(134,175) - - 1,319,288 2,387,520 33,343 7,719,205 36,976 7,756,181
- - - - 845,694 - 845,694 7,650 853,344
37136 - - - - - 37136 - 37136
37136 - - - 845,694 - 882,830 7,650 890,480
- - - - (84,569) - - - -
- - - - - 2036367 2036367 - 2,036,367
- - - - - - - 8,997 8,997
- - - - - - - (1,077) (1,077)
(97,039) - - 1,319,288 3,148,645 2,069,710 10,638,402 52,546 10,690,948
- - 1,248,342 - 1,248,342 36,071 1,284,413
55,885 928,942 (21,786) - - - 963,041 71 962,870
55,885 928,942 (21,786) - 1,248,342 - 2,211,383 35,900 2,247,283
- - - - (124,835) - - - -
- - - - - 2,397,945 2,397,945 - 2,397945
_ _ _ _ - - - (2,241) (2,241)
- - - - - - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
- - - - - - - 301,198 301,198
(41,154) 928,942 (21,786) 1,319,288 4,272,152 4,467,655 19,247,730 387,403 19,635,133
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Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31December 2022

2022 2021
Notes AED’000 AED’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 1,284,413 853,344
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 56 789,053 502,094
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 45960 33,309
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 53,160 10,690
Impairment and write off/(reversal of loss) on investment Properties 6 4,553 (25,813)
Share of results from joint ventures 9 (127,929) (29,248)
Share of results from associate 10 (36,913) -
Impairment losses (net of reversals) on financial assets 12 142,313 20,508
Provision for slow moving inventories 14 1,832 1,210
Amortisation of government grants 18 (383,042) (131,919)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 28 (1.972) 7153
Gain on sale of assets held for sale 35 (73,000) -
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 19 37,211 29,284
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 2,710 (287)
Finance costs 27 394,108 341,844
Finance income (15,116) (627)
Income tax on foreign operations 2,014 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2,119,355 1,611,542
Increase ininventories (25,804) (9,964)
Increase in trade and other receivables (1,241,792) (520,865)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and advances 44 335 (1,766)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 761,886 (267,211)
Cash from operating activities 1,657,980 811,736
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 19 (9,456) (6,596)
Payment of short-term lease (13,602) (12,463)
Payment of low-value assets (8,722) (6,108)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,626,200 786,569
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (5,199,708) (2,856,265)
Purchase consideration paid to acquire new subsidiaries (880,642) -
Proceeds from sale of asset held for sale 310,000 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12,336 734
Purchase of investment properties 6 (321,629) (268,590)
Investments placed injoint ventures 9 - (21190)
Dividends received from joint ventures 9 27066 60,811
Dividends received from associate 10 42,485 -
Repayment received froma loan given to arelated party 29 - 700,000
Investment in short-term deposits 15 (29,616) (15,154)
Short-term deposits matured 15 - 9,048
Finance income received 15,116 627

Net cash used ininvesting activities

(6,024,592) (2,389,979)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial

Statements
2022 2021
Notes AED’000 AED’000
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings 22 1,476,493 2,600,841
Repayment of bank borrowings 22 (1146,132) (5,504,709)
Proceeds fromissuance of shares 16 4,000,000 -
Proceeds from bondissuance 21 - 3,597,165
Transaction costs paid for bond issuance 21 - (22,000)
Government grants received 18 303,354 94,941
Contributions received from the parent - 2,036,367
Finance cost paid (113,069) (102,840)
Payments to project companies 20 (253,933) (255,149)
Payment for principal portion of lease liabilities 8 (116,065) (28,002)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 8 (40,649) (38,370)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (1,675) (1,077)
Net cash from financing activities 4,108,324 2,377,167
Net (decrease)/increasein cash and cash equivalents (290,068) 773,757
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 1,035,803 262,046
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 745,735 1,035,803
Significant non-cash transactions:
Investment in an associate received as a capital contribution 10 1,307,295 -
Investment in FVTOCI received as a capital contribution 11 1,090,650 -
Transfer of capital work-in-progress to receivables for Fujairah port
development project 12 - 493,196
Transfer to properties under development (Investment properties) from capital
workin progress (property, plant and equipment) 730,936 -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment — Fujairah port developments 5 730,936 -
Government grants transferred to a related party 18 - 20,998
Amount due from arelated party offset against an amount due to arelated party - 84,610
Capital work-in-progress transferred to an asset held for sale 5 - 237,000
Capital contribution received from non-controlling interest in the form of property,
plant and equipment - 8,997
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31December 2022

1 Generalinformation

Abu Dhabi Ports Company PJSC (“the Company” or “AD Ports Group”) is a public joint stock company established in
accordance with the provisions of Emiri Decree No. 6 of 2006 dated 4 March 2006 (“the Decree”) as part of the restructuring of
the commercial ports sector in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi (“the Emirate”). During the year, the Company’s ordinary shares were
listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange.

The Company is registered with the Department of Economic Development and obtained its commercial license on 29 March
2006. The registered head office of the Company is at P.O. Box 54477, Mina Zayed, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.

Pursuant to Abu DhabiLaw No. 2 of 2018 and Executive Council Resolution No.143/2019, the ownership of the Company was
transferred to Abu Dhabi Developmental Holding Company PJSC (“ADQ”) from the Government of Abu Dhabi effective from
20 June 2019. Accordingly, ADQ is the parent undertaking of the Company, and the Government of Abu Dhabi (the
“Government”) is the ultimate controlling undertaking of the Company.

The Company, its subsidiaries and joint ventures (together referred to as the “Group”) has grown and diversified into vertically
integrated clusters with operations across ports, economic cities and free zones, logistics, maritime and digital services:

Ports, which owns and operates ports as well as operates terminals under concession arrangements in the UAE;
Economic Cities and Free Zones, which principally operates Khalifa Economic Zone (“KEZAD”) and other industrial cities
following the integration of Specialized Economic Zones Company (“ZonesCorp”) into the Group at the start of 2020;
Logistics, which provide a range of logistical services, such as transportation, warehouse, cargo handling services and
value-added services;

Maritime, which provides arange of marine services, including feedering, as well as transshipment and offshore support
services within and outside UAE. Maritime mainly derives its revenue from port side service fees, feedering, offshore
services, vessel chartering, underwater surveys and other general marine services; and

Digital, which provide digital services to external customers through Magta Gateway LLC as well as services to